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MAYOR’ s  REPORT 

As we ref lect  on the past year ,  I  am 
humbled and honoured to present  my 
f i rs t  annual  report  as Mayor of  Berr i  
Barmera Counci l .  I t  is  wi th pr ide and 
grat i tude that  I  share the h ighl ights  of  
our col lect ive ef forts to make our  region 
a better  place for  al l .   

In  November 2022,  we saw a newly  
elected Counci l  who were thrown in  the 
“deep end” when our region experienced 
the second greatest  f lood for  the Murray 
River .   

This  threw counci l ’s  “business as usual ” 
out  the window as we went  in to 
emergency management mode. Under 
the leadership of our CEO Dylan Strong 
and Execut ive Management Team, our  
ent i re  organisat ion showed grea t 
commitment to the communi ty  as they 
st r ived to respond to the forever -
changing chal lenges of the f lood.  In  
part icular ,  our on - the-ground s taf f  went 
above and beyond to help keep the 
communi ty  and i ts inf rast ructure safe 
under immense pressure.   

In  addi t ion to work ing t i re less ly  on 
f loods,  Counci l  worked on ways to 
improve the l ives of  our  residents  and 
enhance the viabi l i ty  of  our community.  
To this  end, together we have achieved 
signi f icant mi lestones that  deserve 
recogni t ion including:   

• Barmera Mul t ispor t  Complex and
Oval L ight  Upgrade

• Hard Waste Management Pro ject

• Commencement  of  st reetscaping
for  McGil ton Road,  Berr i

• Consul tat ion on the Lake Bonney
Jet ty  project

• Roads to Recovery funding to al low
for  seal ing of roads within our
region

Our dis tr ic t ’s f iscal responsibi l i ty 
has remained s t rong. We have, 
during d i f f icul t t imes, cont inued to 
careful ly manage our resources and 
al locate them to the areas of 
greatest need, forever mindful of the 
current cost -of - l iv ing pressures 
facing our ratepayers.  

Communi ty engagement has been a 
central focus for us, as we bel ieve 
that the s trength of our region l ies in 
the part ic ipat ion of our 
res idents.  Your valuable input has 
played a crucial ro le in shaping our 
responses to f lood impacted areas ,  
as wel l as the di rect ion of o ther key 
projects.   

Over the past twelve months, 
col laborat ion and partnerships have 
played a pivotal role in our success. 
We have cont inued to st r ive to forge 
st rong relat ionships with local 
organisat ions, bus inesses and 
government agencies to tackle 
chal lenges col lect ively.  

As we look ahead, our v is ion for the 
future is guided by the feedback and 
aspi rat ions of our community.  We 
remain committed to bui ld ing a 
growing region that is sustainable 
and forward-th inking.  We are 
exci ted to embark on our plans for 
the coming year, which wi l l make the 
Berr i Barmera Counci l d ist r ict an 
even bet ter place to l ive.  

I want to express my grat i tude to our 
dedicated team, e lected members 
and our di l igent staf f who have 
contr ibuted their t ime and expert ise 
to these achievements. Your 
dedicat ion is the backbone of our 
progress.  



I  a lso want  to extend my sincere 
thanks to al l  our res idents  for  thei r  
cont inued support  and engagement 
in  our  region’s 
development .   Together  we have 
achieved much,  and I  am conf ident  
that  our  fu ture holds even greater  
promise.   

I  would a lso l ike to thank the 
Counci l lors  who served during the last 

term of Counci l including Crs Mike 
Ful ler , Cr Meta Sindos and in particular 
Cr Margaret Evans who has served on 
Counci l s ince 1975. 

F ina l ly , I wou ld l ike to pay t r i bu te to 
fo rmer Mayor Pe ter Hunt fo r h is long , 
d is t inguished serv ice to our communi ty 
and thank h im fo r the generous t ime, 
exper ience and knowledge he has g iven 
Counc i l .   

Mayor El la  Winnal l
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CEO’s REPORT 

After the statewide lockdowns and 
COVID-19 restr ict ions that a l l  South 
Austra l ians faced, Berr i  Barmera 
Counci l  was immediately confronted 
with a once- in-a- l i fet ime f lood in 2022-
2023.  

I t  wi l l  come as no surpr ise to hear that  
successful  f lood preparedness and 
response have been Counci l ’s  biggest 
and most important  achievements of the 
past  f inancial  year .  

Our staf f  showed outs tand ing 
commitment to the cause, combining 
wi th other  levels  of  government to keep 
our communi ty safe and dry  wherever 
possib le.  

Whi le  none of us hope to face a s imi lar 
f lood event  anyt ime soon, learnings 
from our exper ience – and that  of  other  
SA River Murray communit ies  – wi l l  
hopefu l ly  hold us in  good stead in the 
years ahead.  

Counci l ’s  focus was  on 
protect ion of l i fe  and property ,  
and instal l ing levee systems was 
the major  par t  o f  that  endeavour.  

I t  was a massive task, and the 
permanent  systems through N appers 
Bridge to Cobdogla,  and in  Berr i ,  
remain in p lace.  

The department ’s  decis ion to c lose off  
Lake Bonney and Counci l ’s  work 
towards that  goal  e f fect ively  kept  
locals in  the ir  houses,  and kept  our   

CWMS (Community  Wastewater 
Management  System) operat ional ,  
ensur ing 4500 homes had access to 
to i le ts ,  showers and other running 
water.  

The f lood ef fort  necessi ta ted 
enormous and ongoing 
roadworks with in our d is tr ic t .  

Several  counci l  roads that  
sustained serious damage 
during the f lood remained 
compromised after the water  
receded including Riverv iew 
Dr ive in  Berr i ,  and restor ing 
those roads – and access ing 
funding to do so – is an ongoing 
chal lenge.  

Look ing beyond the f lood, 
Counci l  recognised the current 
cost -of - l iv ing pressures facing 
i ts  res idents,  by keeping 
increases to rates and charges 
to a minimum, without  impact ing 
core services expected by our 
communi ty .  

Counci l  a lso marked severa l  
other  important mi lestones over 
the past  year,  including 
planning for  the Lake Bonney 
je t ty and adopt ing our Growth 
Strategy,  which wi l l  dr ive 
act ivat ion and growth of Berr i  
Barmera over the coming 
decade and beyond.  

On the ground, we unvei led the 
completed Barmera sport ing 
prec inct,  including most  
recent ly the outs tanding mul t i -
spor t  changerooms,  and tackled 
the McGil ton Road prec inct in  
Berr i .  Both pro jects  wi l l  del iver  
tangible benef i ts  for  locals .  
Counci l  a lso undertook a range 
of  smal ler  – and community -
focused – pro jects .  
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In addi t ion,  Counci l  p ledged 
support  for the Cobdogla and 
Ir r igat ion Steam Museum, al so 
impacted by the f lood,  and 
endorsed a rate remission for 
local  wine grape growers doing 
i t  tough.  

Our posi t ive resul ts  are the 
resul t  of  a dedicated and hard -
working team of  staf f  and 
elected members,  led by former 
Mayor Peter Hunt  and current  
Mayor El la  Winnal l .  

 Dylan Strong,  
Chief  Execut ive Off icer  
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ELECTED MEMBER 

INFORMATION
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MEETINGS 

Attendance at Meetings 
Counci l    Meet ings are held 
on the fourth Tuesday of  
each month commencing at  
6.00pm. 

The publ ic are welcome 
to attend a l l  Counci l  
meet ings.  

Counci l  agendas are 
avai lable f rom the 
Counci l  o f f ices,  websi te  
and a copy is prov ided 
at  the Counci l  Meet ing 
for  publ ic v iewing.  

Elected Members 
also s i t  on 
committees of 
Counci l  and within 
the communi ty ,  they 
are noted wi thin the 
Annual Report  -  
Elected Member 
Committee 
Representat ion  

MEETING ATTENDANCE SCHEDULE 2022-2023 

Pre-Elect ion  

Elected Members  Counci l  
Meet ings  

Special  Meet ings 
of Counci l  

Mayor Peter Hunt  4 2 

Cr Rhonda 
Centofant i  

4 2 

Cr Meta Sindos  4 1 

Cr Margaret 
Evans OAM 

3 

Cr Adr ian Lit t le  3 2 

Cr Andrew 
Kassebaum 

4 1 

Cr El la Winnal l  4 2 

Cr Trevor Scott  4 2 

Total  Meet ings 
Held 

4 2 
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COUNCILLOR COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

MAYOR PETER HUNT 

• Berr i  Improvement Committee (ex -off ic io)

• Barmera Improvement Committee (ex -off ic io)

• Cemetery Advisory Committee (ex -off ic io)

• Friends of Bonney Theatre Complex Working Group (ex-off ico)

• Road and Place Naming Committee (ex -off ico)

• Environment and Sustainabi l i ty Committee (ex -off ic io)

• Strategy, Assets and Management Projects Committee (ex -off ic io)

• Audit  Committee (ex-off ic io)

• CEO Select ion and Performance Review Committee (Chair )

• Community Grants and Award Select ion Committee (Chair )

CR ELLA WINNALL 

• Berr i  Improvement
Committee

• Environment and
Sustainabi l i ty Committee

• Strategy, Assets and Major
Projects Committee (Chair)

• Leases and Licences
Working Group

• CEO Select ion and
Performance Review
Committee

• Community Grants and
Award Select ion Committee

Other  

• Riverland Wine and Food
Steer ing Committee

• Murraylands and River land
Local Government
Associat ion

• Riverland Local
Government Forum

CR RHONDA CENTOFANTI  

• Berr i  Improvement Committee

• Barmera Improvement
Committee

• Cemetery Advisory Committee

• Lake Bonney Car ing for
Country Management Plan
Committee

• Friends of Bonney Theatre
Working Group

• Road and Place Naming
Committee

• Environment and Sustainabi l i ty
Committee

• Strategy, Assets and Major
Projects Committee

• Audit  Committee

• Barmerara Meru Committee

• CEO Select ion and
Performance Review
Committee

• Community Grants and Award
Select ion Committee

Other  

• Riverland Community Suicide
Prevent ion Network
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CR MARGARET EVANS OAM 

• Berr i  Improvement
Committee

• Cemetery Advisory
Committee

• Road and Place Naming
Committee

• Strategy, Assets and Major
Projects Committee

• Barmerara Meru Committee

• CEO Select ion and
Performance Review
Committee

• Community Grants and
Award Select ion Committee

CR ANDREW KASSEBAUM 

• Strategy, Assets and Major

Projects

• Audit  Committee

• Leases and Licences
Committee

• Environment and
Sustainabi l i ty Committee 
(Chair)  

Other  

• Murray Dar l ing Associat ion
(Region 5)

• Berr i  Barmera Health
Advisory Counci l
representat ive

CR META SINDOS 

• Barmera Improvement
Committee

• Lake Bonney Car ing for
Country Management Plan
Committee (Chair)

• Friends of Bonney Theatre
Working Group

• Strategy, Assets and Major
Projects Committee

• Barmerara Meru Committee

• Audit  Committee

CR TREVOR SCOTT 

• Berr i  Improvement
Committee (Chair)

• Lake Bonney Car ing for
Country Management Plan
Committee

• Friends of Bonney Theatre
Working Group

• Road and Place Naming
Working Group

• Audit  Committee (proxy)

• Leases and Licences
Committee

• Community Grants and
Award Select ion Committee

CR ADRIAN LITTLE 

• Lake Bonney Car ing for
Country Management Plan
Committee (proxy)

• Cemetery Advisory Committee

• Barmera Improvement
Committee

• Environment and Sustainabi l i ty
Committee

• Strategy, Assets and Major
Projects Committee

Other

• Berr i  Barmera Landcare



9 |  P a g e

MEETING ATTENDANCE SCHEDULE 2022-2023 

Post-Elect ion 

Elected Members  Counci l  
Meet ings  

Special  Meet ings 
of Counci l  

Mayor El la 
Winnal l  

8 3 

Cr Rhonda 
Centofant i  

8 3 

Cr Adr ian Lit t le  6 4 

Cr Andrew 
Kassebaum 

8 4 

Cr Trevor Scott  8 3 

Cr Bruce 
Richardson 

8 4 

Cr Ian Schlein  6 4 

Cr David 
Waterman 

7 4 

Cr Coll is Marrett  7 4 

Total  Meet ings 
Held 

8 4 

COUNCILLOR COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

MAYOR ELLA WINNALL 

• Planning and Strategy Committee (Chair)

• CEO Review Panel (Chair)

• Audit  and Risk Management Committee  (ex-off ic io)

• Infrastructure and Operat ions Committee  (ex-off ic io)

• Leases and Licences (ex-off ic io)

Other committees:  

• Murraylands and River land Local Government Associat ion (Deputy Chair)

• Riverland Local Government Forum
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CR TREVOR SCOTT  

• Plann ing  and St ra tegy
Commi t tee

• In f ras t ruc tu re ,  Asse ts  and
Works  Commi t tee  (Cha i r )

• CEO Rev iew Pane l

CR ANDREW KASSEB AUM 

• Aud i t  and  R isk  Management
Commi t tee

Othe r :  

• Murray  Dar l ing  Assoc ia t ion  –
Reg ion  5  Commi t tee

• River land F ru i t  F ly  Response
Group

• Membersh ip  o f  Be r r i  Barmera
Hosp i ta l  Adv iso ry  Group

CR ADRIAN LITTLE 

• Plann ing  and St ra tegy
Commi t tee

• CEO Rev iew Pane l

CR RHONDA CENTOFANTI  

• Plann ing and St ra tegy
Commi t tee

• In f ras t ruc tu re , Asse ts and
Works Commi t tee

• Reconc i l ia t ion Ac t ion P lan
Work ing Group

• River land Commun i ty Su ic ide
Preven t ion Network

• CEO Rev iew Pane l

• Barmerara Meru
Commit tee

CR BRUCE RICHARDSON  

CR DAVID WATERMAN  

• In f ras t ruc tu re ,  Asse ts

and Works  Commi t tee

• CEO Rev iew Pane l

CR IAN SCHLEIN 

• Aud i t  and  R isk

Management  Commi t tee

Othe r  

• River land Commun i ty
Su ic ide Prevent ion
Ne twork

• Reconci l ia t ion Act ion
Plan Working Group

• Barmerara Meru
Committee

CR COLLIS MARRETT  

• Plann ing  and St ra tegy
Commi t tee

• In f ras t ruc tu re ,  Asse ts  and
Works  Commi t tee

Othe r  

• Murray  Dar l ing  Assoc ia t ion  –  Reg ion
5 Commi t tee  (proxy )

• Aud i t  and  R isk  Management  Commi t tee

• Lease and L icence Commi t tee

• In f ras t ruc tu re ,  Asse ts  and Works  Commi t tee
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TRAINING, SEMINARS AND CONFERENCES (elected members) 

•
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In addit ion to the above 
table,  elected members 
at tended the fo l lowing 
conference and training 
sessions throughout the 
year:  

Cr Kassebaum – Murray 
Darl ing Associat ion 
Conference September 2022  

Mayor Peter Hunt – LGA 
AGM Registrat ion October 
2022 

Mayor Winnal l  – LGA OGM 
Registrat ion Apr i l  2023  
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

Berr i  Barmera Counci l  Strategic Plan adopted in  November 2019, establ ished the 
fo l lowing vis ion for the Counci l .  

To enhance the l ivabi l i ty  and enterpr ise of  our  communi ty .  

Themes:  

1. Li festy le – Vibrant and Welcoming Li festy le

2. Business – Valuing and Protect ing the Natural  Envi ronment

3. Smart In frast ructure – Open for Bus iness

The outcomes ref lect  the aspirat ions of  the community,  Counci l  focus ing on  
partnerships, advocacy, act iv i t ies  and programs and projects through t he del ivery  
of  key act ions.  

Under each of  the community outcomes are a series of  statements that ar t icu late 
the aspi rat ions for our Counci l .   These aspi rat ions are achieved through the 
del ivery  of   key act ions and monitored through  me asures of success.
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The Lifestyle  theme posi t ions Counci l  to  contr ibute to creat ing st rong and 
sustainable communi ty  networks, in i t ia te and support  act iv i t ies which encourage 
part ic ipat ion and pr ide,  faci l i ta te heal thy l i festy les through st ructured and 
unstructured recreat ional  pursui ts .  This  theme also encompasses ways in  which to 
support  cul tura l  divers i ty,  aged and disabi l i ty  serv ices and youth development.    

The L i fes ty le  theme is  underp inned w i th  a  des i re  to  cont inue  to  c reate  h igh ly  en joyab le  spaces ,  
exper iences  and a t t rac t ive  tou r is t  s i tes ,  suppor ted  w i th  count ry  hosp i ta l i ty  and p r ide .  

St ra teg ies Per formance Measures  
(Outcomes)

L1 Embed  p lace -mak ing and 
sa fe ty  pr inc ip les  in  
commun i ty  in f ras t ruc tu re  
and regu la te  p lann ing  and 
deve lopment  in  pub l ic  
spaces  

• As pa r t  o f  our  D isab i l i t y  Access
and Inc lus ion  P lan  s ta f f
under took  t ra in ing  to  incorpora te
inc lus ive  p rac t ices  in  p lann ing

L2 Fos ter  loca l  Abor ig ina l  
her i tage and ongo ing 
connec t ions  to  the  land  

• Suppor ted  NAIDOC week
ac t iv i t ies  to  ce lebra te  Abor ig ina l
cu l tu re  in  ou r  d is t r ic t  inc lud ing
pro jec t ion  a t  Bonney  Theat re  o f
the  Waat j i  Pu lye r i  –  B lue  Wren
Sto ry

• Inc lus ion  o f  F i rs t  Na t ions  ar t is ts
work  in  the  Ber r i  V is i to r
In format ion  Cent re

• Exh ib i t ion  o f  works  by  Yvonne
Koo lmat r ie  and Geo f f rey  L indsay
and Unc le  Barney  L indsay  t e l l ing
of  the  Naught  Naught  s to ry .

• Worked w i th  Unc le  Ba rney
L indsay  to  present  Ber r i
r ive r f ron t  ta lks  dur ing  schoo l
ho l idays

• Cont inuat ion  o f  Lake Bonney
Car ing  fo r  Count ry  P lan in
consu l ta t ion  w i th  R iver  Murray
and Ma l lee  Abor ig ina l
Corpo ra t ion  (RRMAC)

L3 Engage w i th ,  and suppor t ,  
young peop le  to  ac t ive ly  
par t ic ipa te  in  the  commun i ty  
and cont r ibu te  ac t ive ly  to  
the i r  fu tu res  

• Prov ided fund ing to  commun i ty
organ isa t ions  to  under take
pro jec ts

• Prov ided programs a round
p las t ic  f ree  Ju ly  and compost ing
workshops  fo r  a  more
sus ta inab le  fu ture

L4 Encourage and suppor t  
vo lun tee r ing  in  the  
commun i ty .  

• Prov ided fund ing to  over  30
commun i ty  o rgan isa t ions  to
under take pro jec ts

• Berr i  L ib rary  H is to ry  vo lun teer
ass is ted  w i th  p ro jec ts
throughout  the  year

L5 Prov ide  oppor tun i t ies  fo r  the  • Pub l ic  survey  consu l ta t ions
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commun i ty  to  par t ic ipa te  in  
loca l  c iv ic  issues  and 
dec is ion -mak ing  

under taken  to  he lp  deve lop 
Counc i l  p lans  and s t ra teg ies  

• Growth  St ra tegy

• Lake Bonney  Je t ty  Rep lacement

• Lease consu l ta t ions  under take n

• Monash Bow l ing  C lub

• River land Gem and Minera l  C lub

• Emergency  Serv ic es  Lease

• Commit tees  o f  Counc i l  to
suppor t  spec i f ic  communi ty
goa ls  inc lud ing  Barmera and
Berr i  Improvement  Commit tees

• Commun i ty  membersh ip  on
Counc i l  Sec t ion  41 commit tees
a l low ing communi ty  pa r t ic ipa t ion

• Centenary  pro jec t  f o r  Ba rmera ,
Glossop and Monash

• Berr i  Ba rmera  Landscape
Xer iscap ing workshop where
res idents  were  ab le  to  lea rn  how
to  manage wate r  and use mu lch
to  be more  sus ta inab le

• Compost ing  workshops  a t
Ba rmera  L ib ra ry

• Fru i t  F ly  sess ions  a t  bo th
l ib ra r ies

• Aust ra l ian  C i t izen o f  the  Year
nomina t ions

L6 Ensure  Counc i l  
in f ras t ruc tu re  suppor ts  
access ib i l i t y  fo r  f ami l ies ,  
the  age ing popu la t ion  and 
peop le  w i th  d isab i l i t ies  
th rough  Counc i l ’s  p lann ing 
and des ign  p r inc ip les  

• Disab i l i t y  Ac t ion  and Inc lus ion
P lan (DAIP)  to  improve access
to  fac i l i t ies

• Prov id ing  add i t iona l  seat ing  in
townsh ips

• As pa r t  o f  our  D isab i l i t y  Access
and Inc lus ion  P lan  s ta f f
under took  t ra in ing  to  incorpora te
inc lus ive  p rac t ices  dur ing
p lann ing

• Lake Bonney  Je t ty
Redeve lopment  pro jec t

L7 Cont inue to  renew the  
counc i l ;  reg ion  th rough  the  
deve lopment  o f  
res taurant /ca fé  fac i l i t i es ,  
camp ing,  p layg rounds  and 
o ther  c iv ic  spaces  

• Imp lementa t ion  o f  book ing
sys tem for  camp s i tes

• Ins ta l la t ion  o f  a  d ig i ta l
in te rpre t ive  exper ience  a t
Loveday  In ternment  Camp ’s
Genera l  Headquar ters

L8 Par tne r  w i th  o thers  to  
suppor t  and ma in ta in  a  
v ib ran t  and a r ts ,  cu l tu ra l ,  
her i tage and events  sec tor .  

• Fur ther  deve lopment  o f  Ar ts  and
Cul tu re  St ra tegy

• Dig i ta l  Pro jec t ion  –  inc lud ing
ANZAC Day ,  Remembrance Day ,
Eas te r ,  Waat j i  Pu lyer ie  -Blue
Wren Story ,  Dona ld  Campbel l ,
Po r ta l  Fantasy  Fes t iva l

• Berr i  V is i to r  In format ion  Cent re
hos ted var ious  exh ib i t ions  and
ut i l iz ing  ar t is ts  fo r  schoo l
ho l iday  p rograms

• Site  pa r tne rsh ips  between Ber r i
and Barmera L ib rar ies  to  o f fe r
schoo l  ho l iday  programs
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•  Worked w i th  Fr iends  o f  Bonney  
Theat re  Work ing  Group  to  
ac t iva te  fac i l i t y  

•  Prov ided SALA reg is t ra t ion  
subs idy  prog ram  

•  Po r ta l  -  Fantasy  Fes t iva l  

•  Work ing  w i th  Landscape SA on 
Tur t le  Awareness  

•  Ce lebra ted the  25 t h  ann iversa ry  
o f  the  Berr i  Br idge inc lud ing  the  
ind igenous  ar twork  under  the  
br idge  

•  In  March s ta f f  f rom Ber r i  L ib ra ry  
he lped organ ise  a  German  WWII  
In ternees  f rom Pers ia  and the i r  
Fate  in  Aus t ra l ia  Sympos ium 
which  was  a t tended f ro m peop le  
around Aus t ra l ia  

•  H is to ry  month  even ts  ac ross  our  
reg ion  

L9 Enhance u t i l isa t ion  o f  
Counc i l -owned  rec reat ion  
fac i l i t ies  fo r  a  more  d iverse  
range o f  ac t iv i t ies  a l igned to  
commun i ty  and cu l tu ra l  
needs  

•  Ins ta l la t ion  o f  new changeroom 
fac i l i t ies  a t  Barmera Ova l  

•  Week ly  wa lk  in  tech he lp  
sess ions  a t  ou r  l ib rar ies  

•  A number  o f  commun i t y  g roups  
ho ld ing  in format ion  sess ions  
inc lud ing  fos te r  care ,  women ’s  
lega l  serv ices ,  s tamp c lub ,  
RAISE and Komp le te  Care  

•  Ba rmera  C irc le  Connec t  a  group 
engaged in  c reat ive  ac t iv i t ies  to  
br ing  commun i ty  together  

•  Arm Cha ir  Yoga ca te r ing  to  the  
ab i l i t i es  o f  pa r t ic ipants  

L10 Par tne r  w i th  o thers  to  fos ter  
cont inuous  loca l  
improvement  in  hea l th  
serv ice  p rov is ion ,  fac i l i t ies  
and in f ras t ruc ture  

•  Advocate  fo r  CORE  

•  Membersh ip  o f  R ive r land Su ic ide  
Prevent ion  Ne twork  

•  Membersh ip  o f  Berr i  Barmera 
Hosp i ta l  Adv isory  Commit tee  

L11 Encourage and suppor t  
hous ing tha t  suppor ts  
a f fo rdab i l i t y ,  connec t ion  in  
the  commun i ty  and ac t i ve  
ag ing .  

•  Advocate  work  w i th  the  Reg ions ’  
Ra l ly  fo r  the  R ive r land Pro jec t  

•  Imp lementa t ion  o f  Counc i l ’s  
Growth  St ra tegy  

L12 Advocate  fo r  inc rease to  
commun i ty  t ranspor t  and 
access  to  serv ices  and  
fac i l i t ies  bo th  w i th in  and 
across  townsh ips  

 

L13 Work  w i th  the  Federa l  and 
Sta te  Governmen t  to  c reate  
a  sense o f  we lcome and 
prov is ion  o f  essent ia l  
serv ices  ac ross  ou r  
commun i ty  

 

L14 Cont inue to  inves t  in  u rban 
in f ras t ruc tu re  tha t  p romotes  
connec t ion ,  re laxat ion ,  
sa fe ty ,  and hosp i ta l i ty  

•  Federa l  Government ’s  Drough t  
Commun i t ies  funded  pro jec ts  

•  Federa l  Government ’s  Loca l  
Roads  and Commun i ty  
In f ras t ruc ture  Prog ram pro jec ts  
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The Natura l  Env i ronment  theme focuses  on reduc ing the  overa l l  env i ronmenta l  impac t  o f  
Counc i l ’s  ac t iv i t ies  and  enhanc ing ou r  na tu ra l  a t t r ibu tes .  Th is  theme focuses  on prov id ing  and 
ma in ta in ing  qua l i ty  assets ,  in f ras t ruc ture  and serv ices  to  mee t  the  curren t  and fu ture  needs  o f  
the  commun i ty ,  wh i le  va lu ing  and p ro tec t ing  the  natu ra l  env i ronment  in to  perpetu i ty .  Th is  theme 
a lso  emphas izes  the  requ i rement  to  commit  to  po l ic ies  and s t ra teg ies  to  manage the  
in te r re la t ionsh ip  between bus iness  and the  na tura l  env i ronment  and to  inves t  in  ‘g reen 
in f ras t ruc tu re ’ .  The Natura l  Env i ronment  is  about  enab l ing  ou tcomes tha t  a re  both  
env i ronmenta l ly  sus ta inab le  and economica l l y  sound wh i le  seek ing  innovat ion  in  th is .  

St ra teg ies Per formance Measures  
(Outcomes)

N1 Suppor t  t our ism deve lopment  
tha t  sus ta ins  the  natura l  
env i ronment  and sys tems  

• Cont inue work ing  w i th
RMMAC under tak ing  major
pro jec t  Lake Bonney
Car ing  fo r  Count ry

• Worked w i th  Landscape to
de l iver  schoo l  ho l iday
workshops

N2 Des ign and inves t  in  h igh  
qua l i ty  camp ing s i tes ,  and 
wa lk ing  and cyc l ing  t ra i ls  tha t  
a re  sens i t ive  to  the  natura l  
landscapes  tha t  they  t raverse  

• Deve lopment  o f  camps i tes
a long  Lake Bonney
Foreshore  (wh ich  were
unfor tunate ly  dec imated
dur ing  the  f lood)

N3 Des ign fu ture  deve lopmen ts  and 
fac i l i t ies  to  suppor t  ac t ive  
l i fes ty les  and commun i ty  hea l th
and we l lbe ing

• The ins ta l la t ion  o f  new
changerooms and l igh t ing
at  Barmera Ova l

N4 Focus  on c l imate  adapt ion  
th rough  a  s t ra teg ic  app roach to  
t rees ,  pavement  sur faces  and 
green energy  

• Upgrades  to  i r r iga t ion  to
improve wate r  use and
ef f ic ienc ies

• Plant  se lec t ion  to  improve
water  use and e f f ic ienc ies

N5 Inves t  in  bus iness  oppor tun i t ies  
tha t  c reate  c i rcu la r  economy 
outcomes across  wate r ,  was te  
and ene rgy   

• Membersh ip  o f  the  Mur ray
Dar l ing  Assoc ia t ion  –
Region 5  commit tee

N6 Expand /  secure  loca l  water  
supp ly  capac i ty  to  suppor t  
economic  deve lopment  ac ross  
the  reg ion   

N7 Emp loy  educat ion  and po l icy  
deve lopment  to  suppor t  wate r  
sav ings  th roughout  the  
commun i ty   

• Berr i  Ba rmera  Landscape
Xer iscap ing workshop
where  res idents  were  ab le
to  learn  how to  manage
water  and use mu lch  to  be
more sus ta inab le

• Compost ing  workshops  a t
Ba rmera  L ib ra ry

N8 App ly  bes t  p rac t ice  in  Cat  
management  

• Work  w i th  res iden ts  to
reg is ter  ca ts
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N9 Ma in ta in  c lea r ly  de f ined 
townsh ips  and managemen t  
deve lopment  to  sus ta in  the  
natura l  env i ronment  

N10  Work  w i th  emergency  serv ices  
to  prepare  fo r  d isas te r  
management  and recovery  

• Imp lementa t ion  o f
Counc i l ’s  Emergency
Management  P lan

• Counc i l  worked c lose ly
wi th  emergency  serv ices
throughout  the  2022/2023
f lood
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The  Bus iness  theme focuses  on  bu i ld ing  s t rong  and  in f luen t ia l  re la t ionsh ips  w i th  o the rs  to  
s t rengthen  and d ive rs i f y  ou r  economy  and underp ins  Counc i l ’s  economic  p lann ing  and  
deve lopment  ac t iv i t ies .  Wi th  a  focus  on g row ing  the  number  o f  loca l  jobs  and the  number  o f  
jobs  not  d ependen t  on  the  r ive r ,  Counc i l  is  keen  to  grow the  loca l  economy to  inc lude a  d iverse  
indus t ry  base .  Th is  theme is  a lso  abou t  ensu r ing  in f ras t ruc tu re ,  p lann ing and inves tment  is  in  
p lace to  suppor t  bus iness ,  a t t rac t  peop le  to  the  reg ion ,  re ta in  qua l i t y  s ta f f  and E lec ted 
Members  and  to  cap i ta l ise  on  oppor tun i t ies .  I t  recogn ises  the  benef i ts  to  be  acc rued  f rom bo th  
a  s t rong b rand and ma rket  p resence  and sha r ing  resou rces  to  leve rage  outcomes . .  

St ra teg ies Per formance Measures  
(Outcomes)

B1  Work  w i th  Sta te  and Loca l  
Government  and the  Reg iona l  
Deve lopment  Aus t ra l ia  to  fos ter  
and encourage a l l  s izes  o f  
bus iness  and innovat ion  in  
bus iness   

• Part ic ipa te  and
cont r ibu te  towards  reg ion
d iscuss ions ,  p rov id ing
suppor t  and advocat ing
for  RDA St ra teg ic  p lan

B2  Work  w i th  pa r tne rs  to  a t t rac t  
bus iness  not  re l ian t  on  the  r iver  

• Advocate  th rough the
reg ion ’s  Ra l ly  fo r
R iver land Pro jec t

B3  Suppor t  educat ion  and  t ra in ing  
programs tha t  respond to  
work force  gaps  and innovat ion  

• Berr i  L ib rary  Re locat ion
– to  enab le  the  l ib ra ry  to
be a  s tand -a lone  locat ion
creat ing  more   space fo r
the  Ber r i  Reg iona l
Secondary  Co l lege.

B4  Enhance resou rce shar i ng  and 
reg iona l  oppor tun i t ies  w i th  o the r  
counc i ls   

• Regiona l  pa r tnersh ip
wi th  Ra l ly  fo r  the
River land pro jec t

• Regiona l  Waste
Management  S t ra tegy

• G3 pa r t ic ipa t ion  around
In format ion
Commun ica t ion
Techno logy  ( ICT)
s t ra tegy

• Part ic ipa t ion  in  the
River land Reg iona l
Bu i ld ing  F i re  Safe ty
Commit tee

B5  Advocate  fo r  fas t ,  re l iab le  NBN 
in f ras t ruc tu re  wh i le  enhanc ing 
In format ion  Communica t ion  
Techno log ies  ( ICT)  ac ross  the  
reg ion   

B6  Suppor t  economic  g rowth  th rough 
events   

• Over  35  events
suppor ted  w i th  p lann ing
log is t ics ,  f inanc ia l  and
in -k ind  suppor t  inc lud ing
Caree r  Hea l th  Expo,
Brave 4  Dave Wa lk ,
Mighty  R ive r  Run,
Chr is tmas  ac t iv i t ies
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B7 Fac i l i ta te  deve lopment  th rough 
approp r ia te  zon ing and  amend 
when requ i red   

• Imp lementa t ion  o f
Counc i l ’s  Growth
St ra tegy

B8  Suppor t  ex is t ing  bus iness  and 
indus t ry  to  th r ive  and g row  

• Educat ion  campaigns
around f ru i t  f ly  and  the
impac t  th is  has  on our
hor t icu l tu re  and
v i t icu l tu re

B9  In i t ia te  improvemen ts  to  
in f ras t ruc tu re  w i th in  townsh ips  to  
enhance amen i ty  fo r  res idents  and  
v is i to rs  

• Updat ing  o f  kerb ing  and
footpaths

• Sto rmwater  upgrades

• Hard was te  co l lec t ion

B10  St rengthen ou r  brand and market  
p resence  

• Counc i l  b rand ing used by
sponsored ex te rna l
organ isa t ions

• Admin is t ra t ion  po l icy
deve lopment  to
s t rengthen  cons is tency
in  in te rna l  documenta t ion

B11  Emp loy  bes t  p rac t ice  f inanc ia l ,  
governance and serv ice  methods  
across  Counc i l ’s  work   

• Aud i t  and R isk
Management  Commit tee

• Rev iew and p lan  fo r  a l l
ou ts ide  works
under taken  by  Counc i l

• Transpor t  Pe rmi ts  –
Nat iona l  Heavy  Veh ic le
Regu la tor

B12  Inves t  in  work fo rce  p lann ing  and 
upsk i l l ing  o f  s ta f f  and prov ide  
avenues  fo r  employee 
advancement  and pro fess iona l  
deve lopment   

• Staf f  have under taken
t ra in ing  re levant  to  the i r
ro les

B13  Inves t  in  upsk i l l ing  /  sk i l l  
ma in tenance o f  E lec ted Members  

• Elec ted members
under took  mandato ry
t ra in ing  to  ensure  they
have su f f ic ien t  sk i l l  and
knowledge to  under take
the i r  ro les

• Part ic ipa t ing  in  Nat iona l
Genera l  Assemb ly  o f
Loca l  Government
conference

B14  Exp lore  opt ions  to  au tomate  
processes  and in t roduce v i r tua l  
suppor t  /  A r t i f ic ia l  In te l l igence (A I )  

B15  Ensure  ongo ing  compl iance w i th  
Loca l  Government  Ac t  
requ i rements  and processes  

• Success fu l  comp l iance
and f inanc ia l  aud i ts
carr ied  ou t .

• Cont inue to  car ry  ou t
requ i rements  o f  Counc i l
St ra teg ic  Plans  inc lud ing
In f ras t ruc ture
Management  P lans

• Elec ted member  t ra in ing

• Po l icy  Rev iews
under taken

• Imp lementa t ion  o f  Annua l
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Bus iness  P lan  and Long  
Term F inanc ia l  P lan  

• Aud i t  and R isk
Management  Commit tee
mee t ings
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COUNCIL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

OPERATING SURPLUS 
The ope ra t ing  resu l t  shows the  
f inanc ia l  pe r fo rmance o f  Counc i l  by  
look ing  a t  to ta l  income less  
expenses  

NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

2022-2023 Adop ted Budget 83%

2022-2023 Adopted Budget  $-87,374
2022-2023 Long 
Term F inanc ia l  
Management  P lan  
Targe t  

83%

2022-2023 Long Te rm 
F inanc ia l  Managemen t  
P lan Target  

$46,000 2022-2023 F inanc ia l  Resu l t  20%

2022-2023 F inanc ia l  Resu l t  $27,417

2022-2023 
Ad jus ted 
F inanc ia l  Resu l t  

$114,791 ASSET SUSTAINABILITY RATIO 
(ASSET MANAGEMENT 
PERFORMANCE)  

OPERATING SURPLUS 
RATIO 
The Opera t ing  Surp lus  Rat io  is  
the  ope ra t ing  surp lus / (de f ic i t )  
expressed as  a  pe rcen tage o f  
genera l  and o the r  ra tes ,  ne t  o f  
ra te  rebates  and revenues  f rom 
the Reg iona l  Landscape levy  

2022-2023 Adopted Budget  0%

Net  asset  renewa l  expend i tu re  is  de f ined as  
net  cap i ta l  expend i tu res  on the  renewa l  and  

rep lacement  o f  ex is t ing  assets  and exc ludes  
new cap i ta l  expend i tu re  on the  acqu is i t ion  o f  
add i t iona l  assets .  Th is  ra t io  ind ica tes  whe the r  
the  Counc i l  is  renewing or  rep lac ing  ex is t ing  

assets  a t  the  ra te  o f  consumpt ion .  

2022-2023 Long Te rm 
F inanc ia l  Managemen t  
P lan Target  

0%

2022-2023 Adopted Budget  104%

2022-2023 F inanc ia l  Resu l t  0.1%

2022-2023 Long Te rm 
F inanc ia l  

Management  P lan  Ta rget  

104%

2022-2023 Ad jus ted 
F inanc ia l  Resu l t  

-4.4%

2022-2023 F inanc ia l Resu l t 47%

YEAR  RESULT  
  SURPLUS 

YEAR  RESULT  
  SURPLUS 

YEAR  RESULT  
  SURPLUS 
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RATING AND VALUATION SUMMARY 
 

 

Rates are a tax levied on propert ies accord ing to the i r  capi ta l  value which are determined by the Valuer  General .   In 
2022/2023 Berr i  Barmera Counci l  generated $9,377,979.30 mi l l ion of ‘General  Rate Revenue’.    

This  rate revenue equated to 61% of  Berr i  Barmera Counci ls operat ing income.  

 

Counci l  uses capi ta l  va lue as the basis  for valuing land within the Counci l  area.   The Counci l  considers  that th is method 
of  valuing land prov ides the fai rest  methods of dist r ibu t ing the rate burden across al l  ra tepayers on the fol lowing bas is.  

•  The equi ty pr inciple of  taxat ion requi res that  taxpayers of greater weal th pay more tax than those of  lesser weal th  

•  Property  value is a good indicator of  weal th and capi tal  va lue, which c lo sely approx imates the market value of  a 
 property and provides the best  indicator of  overal l  property  value  

 

The fol lowing table shows the proport ion of  general  rates raised per  category of  land use  
 

Land 
Use 

Capita l  Value  
% of  to tal  
CV  

No.  o f  
propert ies  

% of  to tal  
propert ies  

Proposed 

Rates  
rates 
levied  

Non Rateable  $83,920,254  4.97% 481 7.11%   

Resident ial  $1,083,191,900  64.11% 4536 67.06% $6,470,223.85  

Primary 
Product ion  $260,035,364  15.39% 929 13.73% $1,439,023.20  

Commerc ial  (al l  
categories)  $155,325,908  9.19% 391 5.78% $1,043,195.60  

Industr ia l  
(al l  categories)  $55,166,779  3.27% 88 1.30% $368,520.95  

Vacant  $25,648,408  1.52% 252 3.73% $155,683.75  

Other  $26,243,427  1.55% 87 1.29% $202,146.20  

 $1,689,532,040  100% 6764 100% $9,678,793.55  
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
 

 

Berr i  Barmera Counci l   is  committed to a pol icy  of  equal  opportuni ty in  
employment.  The Counci l  accepts that  i t  has a responsibi l i ty  to  create an 
envi ronment  f ree f rom discr iminat ion, and to ensure that  the pr incip le of  
meri t  operates unhindered by regard to i rre levant cr i ter ia .   

 

Counci l  act ive ly  promotes Equal  Employment  Opportuni t ies through i ts  
r igorous recrui tment and select ion process and through the ongoing del ivery  
and management  of  i ts  expectat ions and procedural  obl igat ions.  
Performance management systems ensure that  these expectat ions are 
regular ly communicated and understood,  and that  there is accountabi l i ty  by 
both Counci l  and s taf f  for the del ivery of  profess ional  serv ice s tandards in  
the discharging of  dut ies. These contr ibute to  the ongoing support  of  s taf f  
development  and equi table access to opportuni t ies.  
 

AWARD AND ENTERPRISE AGREEMENTS  

 

The Austral ian Workers Union Enterpr ise Bargain ing Agreement No.1 4 
commenced from 1 July  2022 for a per iod of 3  years ending 30 June 202 5.  The 
Austra l ian Services Union Enterpr ise Bargaining Agreement No.  12 commenced 
from 1 July  2022 for  a period of 3  years ending on 30 June 2025.  These 
agreements vary  the wage and condit ions of the Local  Government  Employees 
Award and the South Austral ian Municipal  Salar i ed Of f icers Award to be 
organisat ion speci f ic  

 

 

EMPLOYEE MATTERS 

 

As at  June 2023,  Counci l  employed 81 staff  equal ing 68.4 ful l  t ime equivalent  
posi t ions (FTE).  

 

 

 
  

40

41

4

TOTAL EMPLOYEES

Male Employees Female Employees Vacancies



26 |  P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

1

5 5

9

8

5

8

10

15

12

3

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65+

AGE PROFILE FOR EMPLOYEES



27 |  P a g e  
 

STAFF ORGANISATIONAL CHART 
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WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 

 

Counci l  st r ives and works 
towards assuring a safe and 
heal thy work envi ronment for  al l  
staf f .  Counci l  cont inues to 
develop and implement  
programs, pol ic ies and 
procedures for  the ident i f icat ion 
of  hazards and to ensure 
compl iance wi th appl icable s tate 
and federal  heal th,  safety ,  and 
envi ronmental  regulat ions.  

 

As par t  o f  th is commitment,  
Counci l  cont inues to provide 
screening and preventat ive 
programs for  i ts  s taf f .    

In format ion sessions are a lso 
made avai lable to employees on 
a cont inuing basis and have 
covered the fol lowing:  

•  Ageing workforce program – 
including s t retching in 
workplace 

•  Skin cancer screening  

•  Flu vaccinat ions  

•  Healthy l i fes ty le program – 
heal th assessments.  

 

There has been fur ther progress 
in  the act iv i t ies  and resources to 
maximise worker  safety and 
wel lbeing and to maintain legal  
compl iance by:  

•  Work Health and Safety 
Implementat ion Plan  

•  Cont inual  improvement  of  
contractor management 
processes  

•  Documentat ion 
improvement  in  hazard 
management and use of  
hazardous chemicals  

•  Further  development of  
var ious document  

 

registers .   

 

Counci l  cont inues to increase 
workplace eff ic iency by:  

•  Maintaining low incident  rates  

•  Improving compl iance wi th 
Work Health and Safety 
(WHS) by improving Counci l ’s  
systems 

•  Assessing and mainta ining 
high level  o f  safety for  
employees,  contractors and 
volunteers  

•  Conduct ing workplace 
inspect ions on a regular basis  

•  Maintaining updated 
document  regis ters .  

 

Work Health and Safety Risk 
Committee  

Counci l ’s  Work Health Safety  
and Risk Commit tee comprises 
equal  representat ion of  
management and employees.   
The Committee meets  quarter ly  
to  address work heal th and 
safety  issues.   The committee 
has an ongoing commitment to 
work heal th  and safety  to  
achieve the best pol ic ies, 
procedures and pract ices for  
the safety  of  al l  employees, 
contractors  and volunteers.  

 

Risk Management  

Counci l ’s  exposure to l iab i l i ty  
has been l imi ted through 
establ ished f rameworks that 
support  a  v igorous r isk 
management cul ture.  The 
cont inual  assessment ,  
measurement  and moni tor ing of 
Counci ls  r isk  prof i le  ensure r isks 
involved in  Counci l ’s  funct ions 
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and serv ices are managed and 
opportuni t ies are maximised.  
Risk management  is in tegrated 
as part  of  good management 
pract ice in to a l l  funct ions of  
Counci l .  Effect ive ident i f icat ion,  
assessment  and evaluat ion of 
def ined r isks are cr i t ica l  to 
counci l  achieving i t s st rategic  
object ives and meet ing the 
expectat ion of  the community.  
Proact ive management  and 
maintenance of  Counci l ’s  assets,  
in f rastructure and faci l i t ies;  
pol icy and procedures;  plans and 
programs are areas that are 
cont inual ly  rev iewed for 
appropr iateness.  

 

Work Health and Safety and 
Return to Work  

Cont inuous improvement 
underpins Counci l ’s  approach to 
al l  i ts  act iv i t ies.   The Work 
Safety  and Injury  Assessment  
Plan ensures Counci l  can ident i fy  
key def ic iency areas and 
measure the success of 
systematic  targets designed to 
improve per formance.   Key areas 
of  focus for 2022/2023 were:  

•  Improving the WHS 
Management  system 

•  WHS KPI Act ion Plan  

•  Return to work  

 

Training and Development  

Counci l  is  committed to providing 
a program of  t raining and 
development  which  supports  a 
cul ture of  learning,  growth and 
embrac ing new opportuni t ies.  
Progressing s taf f ’s  sk i l ls  and 
knowledge benef i ts the Counci l  
and the indiv idual .  Compl iance 
tra in ing in  legis la t ion and 
industry standards forms a large 
part  of  Counci l ’s  t ra ining ne eds.  

 

This  year approximate ly   

98 t raining, development and 
heal th monitor ing sessions were 
at tended by s taf f ,  del ivered by a 
mix  of  in -house and external  
faci l i ta tors  and both in ind iv idual  
and group t raining.  

 

 

Emergency Management  

Helping to protect  and assist  the 
communi ty  to  respond to and 
recover from disasters  is a 
shared responsibi l i ty .  Counci l ,  
a long with other key agencies 
prov ide support  through various 
act iv i t ies in  planning,  
preparedness,  response and 
recovery with in emergency 
management.  Counci l  cont inues 
to act ively work wi th  agencies 
and support ing departments in  
the development  of  st rategies 
wi th representat ion on the 
Murray Mal lee zone and local  
emergency commit tees to ensure 
that  p lans are ref lect ive of  local  
government’s capaci ty  and wi thin 
scope of  responsibi l i t ies.  

  

Counci l  has been part  of  the 
representat ion for the Local  
Government sector for  the 
development  and review of state,  
local  and federal  st rategies and 
ini t ia t ives. Key Counci l  
representat ion dur ing 2022/2023 
has been par t  o f  the South 
Austra l ian River Murray f lood 
warning system; River Murray 
Constraints Measures Pro ject;  
Bio-Securi ty SA f rui t  f ly ;  Tr i  state 
Emergency Services Border 
Liaison; and,  Local  Government 
Funct ional  Support  Group State 
Border L iaison.    

 

Dur ing emergencies Counci l  
responds to and act i vely 



30 |  P a g e  
 

moni tors  Counci l  in f rast ructure 
and serv ices and provides 
support  to the emergency 
services and support ing 
agencies. The response to and 
management of  events  by the 
emergency services personnel 
and agencies are recognised 
along with the s taf f  of  Counc i l  a l l  
of  whom work col lect ively to 
min imise the impact  of  events  on 
the communi ty .   

 

Operat ional  act iv i t ies and 
support  has been provided in  the 
River land dist r ic t  area during 
2022/2023 in the response to 
f lood;  ext reme weather heat and 
storm; plant d isease;  and human 
pandemic.  

 

Counci l  remains commit ted to 
act ively establ ishing and 
support ing a res i l ient  communi ty  
through mi t igat ion act iv i t ies.  Part  
of  th is  has been a resi l ience 
focus on the ident i f icat ion of  
opportuni t ies for  st rengthening 
the capaci ty o f  the communi ty  
for ,  and of ,  the effects f rom 
disaster events wi th in the dist r ict  
areas.  

 

Counci l  a long with the 
surrounding counci ls regular ly 
col laborate with the community 
funct ional  services of  SAPOL to 
discuss cr ime prevent ion and 
communi ty  safety  wi thin the 
region.  This provides for  a 
col lect ive approach to issues that 
are or have the potent ial  for 
impact on the safety of  the 
communi ty .   
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OVERVIEW 

The Infrast ructure and Operat ions 
div is ion is  dedicated to enhancing 
the Counci l 's  in f rast ructure and 
assets ,  guaranteeing the provis ion of 
f i rs t  ra te,  secure,  and wel l -
maintained envi ronments for  
communi ty  members and tourists.  
This  f iscal  year has seen a diverse 
range of tasks undertaken,  including:  

Maintenance and Construct ion: This  
encompasses act iv i t ies  such as :  

• maintaining and replacing roads
and footpaths,  grading,

• addressing s tormwater  and
ef f luent concerns ( including
restroom fac i l i t ies) ,

• conduct ing minor maintenance on
Counci l  bui ld ings,

• performing weed spray ing,

• slashing overgrown areas,

• removing deceased animals ,

• managing road signage and white
posts,

• tackl ing vandal ism,

• overseeing waste bins and
concrete kerbing,

• carry ing out cemetery -related
work,

• road seal ing, and

• at tending to boat  ramps,
pontoons,  and landings.

Parks and Gardens:  Our team takes 
care of  essent ial  tasks l ike mowing, 
i r r igat ion,  weeding,  t r imming and 
plant ing t rees and shrubs, as wel l  as 
maintaining playgrounds and 
cleaning BBQ faci l i t ies.  

Other  Responsibi l i t ies:  In  addi t ion to 
the above,  our  div is ion handles 
asset management,  geographical  
in formation systems, prov iding 

technical advice, and engaging wi th 
customers to address their needs 
and concerns. 

The last f inancial year has seen a 
very smal l skeleton crew cont inue to 
perform the above roles to mainta in 
the status quo, whi le major i ty of our 
staf f fu l ly engaged on f lood 
preparedness commencing in la te 
September 2022. This saw 90% of 
our work force reassigned to assis t 
in bui ld ing new and re -establ ishing 
old ear then levees wi th in our Counci l 
area. This cont inued through to the 
peak of the f lood event which was 
reached on  28 of December 2022. 
The event saw many staff g iv ing up 
their plans for Chr is tmas break 
which was commended. Leading into 
2023 saw the high -water f looding 
event subside leav ing in i ts wake the 
huge clean up task. This c lean -up 
cont inues into the new f inancial year 
2023/24 and wi l l cont inue for months 
to come.  
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ROAD CONSTRUCTION   AND 
MAINTENANCE 

 

 

 

Annual ly ,  during the 
f inanc ial  year,  a 
select ion of  roads are 
ident i f ied through v isual  
assessments for 
inclusion in Asset  
Management  Plan's  re -
sheet ing program. 

 

This  involves 
replenishing the 
crushed rock that has 
gradual ly eroded over  
years of   vehicu lar  
act iv i ty ,  r ipp ing and 
blending with the 
exis t ing road base, 

 

new product and 
relaying i t ,  reforming 
the road.   

 

Even with the c lean -up 
process taking place 
Counci l  st i l l  managed to 
perform this  funct ion on 
several  unsealed roads 
wi th in the Counci l  area.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PARKS AND GARDENS/IRRIGATION 
 

 

 

2022/2023 has been a very  
busy t ime for  these two 
ent i t ies  within 
in f rastructure. Whi le many 
were ut i l ised in the bui ld ing 
of  levees,  a smal l  group 
remained focused on 
del iver ing to the community 
the many expectat ions that  

come f rom the rate payer 
such as parks,  gardens,  
mowing and general  
maintenance. Again once 
the water had subsided 
these two groups were 
busy re instal l ing pumps,  
BBQs and toi le t  faci l i t ies 
for  the approaching Easter 

period.  Also very busy in  
the removal of  the T2 
defence cel ls  which had 
been p laced di rect ly on 
lawned area a long 
Riverview Dr ive.  Once 
removed th is  area requi red 
considerable reworking and 
top dressing .



34 |  P a g e  
 

.   

PROJECTS DELIVERED 
 

 

 

A l though there were few projects del ivered ,  Counci l  was able dur ing a very hect ic  
year  to  complete the Barmera Mul t isport ,  Barmera Founta in and  undertake 
kerbside col lec t ion  program. 

 

 BARMERA MULTISPORT CHANGEROOMS  

 
Contractors  and Counci l  s taf f  were able to  del iver  to  the publ ic  a magni f icent  
complex in  the Mul t ispor t  Changeroom faci l i ty .  This project  was a h igh -end 
project  hampered by many obstacles including the f looding event.   

 

The complet ion and f in ish of  th is  faci l i ty  is  a true testament to the 
determinat ion of  al l  involved throughout  this bui ld,  leaving a wonderfu l  legacy 
to be used and enjoyed by al l  i ts  users .  
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PROJECTS 
 

 

BARMERA FOUNTAIN 

 
The Barmera main st reet  fountain 
has been qui te  topical  for many 
years af ter  many had t r ied thei r  
improvements for the towns 
centre p iece without success. 
Counci l  staf f  pr ior the f looding 
event  had completed some 
prel iminary  works for the 
bet terment  of  th is  iconic 

st ructure,  shelv ing the project 
when al l  staf f  were requi red to 
focus on the f lood. Once the 
f lood had subsided Counci l  
resumed works on this project ,  
complet ing i t  wi th  success 
short ly af ter .  And again, a  great 
commitment to a fun project .  
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WASTE 
 

 

HARD WASTE PROVISION  
 

Apri l  2023 Barmera saw their  turn in 
the three-year contract  for kerbs ide 
col lect ion. This  was successful  as 
was the in troduct ion of  the voucher 
system which also recorded a high 
user  rate .  In  conclusion the year 
2022/23 was a year of  hard, 
calcu lat ing dec is ion making for  our 
In f rast ructure team in many regards, 
but  wi th  some very  posi t ive and 
great  outcomes as a resul t .   The 
team worked wel l  together  and wi th 
other  s takeholders in preparat ion for  

the f lood.   Once the water  had 
subsided the c lean-up process 
commenced and is  cont inu ing.  

 

Al though Counci l  has had a  
test ing twelve months,  the level  o f  
commitment undertaken by the 
staf f  was second to none.   Al l  staf f  
were focused on the task at  hand 
both pre and post f lood,  whi le  s t i l l  
being able to maintain a service 
level ,  is  a great  achievement .  

 

WASTE MANAGEMENT  

The table below indicates the total tonnage of waste transported to the River land  
Resource Recovery Faci l i ty in Monash from 1 September 2022 through to 30 June 
2023.  

 

Waste Type Loads Bins Lif ted  Tonnes Ki los Per 
Bin 

Garbage 378 196,426 1878.99 9.6 

Organics  154 36,679 689.49 18.8 

Recycl ing 162 86,374 629.76 7.3 

 

 

 

This year in waste started off  
with some chal lenges with the 
introduct ion to a new waste 
contractor in Solo under a new 
contract which commenced on the 
1 of  September.  The f irst  sector 
of  this year was spent in ensur ing 
a serv ice was del ivered to the 
community under the new 
contractor that was comparable 
to the previous serv ice del ivery.  
Some changes were made early 
addressing expectat ions by the 
new Contractor,  the Recovery 
Faci l i ty at  Monash and Counci l .   

 

 

For comparison 57% of the total 
tonnage was sent to landf i l l  
s l ight ly down from 64% in the 
prev ious year.  Counci l  is st i l l  
facing issues with the organic ’s 
component to our waste with 
many contaminates st i l l  being 
found, even with some 
suspension of services for those 
that cont inue to contaminate the 
green waste. However an 
Adelaide based company has 
taken in an opportunist ic 
approach to th is waste, 
convert ing i t  to a reusable 
fert i l iser and pott ing compost.      
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Environment, Economic and 
Regulatory Services  
 

 

Our Environment and Regulatory Serv ices Department prov ides the 
fol lowing serv ices to our communit ies:  

 

P lann ing Assessment   Bu i ld ing  Assessment  

Deve lopment  Approva ls   Wastewater  Assessment  

Food Safe ty   Mosqui to  Cont ro l  

Park ing Cont ro l   An ima l  Management  

Genera l  Inspect ions and  
Compl iance  

Bushf i re  Prevent ion  

By-Laws,  Proper ty  and  
Bu i ld ing  Management  

Cemeter ies Admin is t ra t ion  

Counc i l ’ s  Wastewater  
Management  System 

 

 

Development Assessment  

 

The Planning, Development and Infrast ructure Act 2016, the Planning and Design 
Code and the Planning Porta l are now in place for al l  development assessment  
across South Austral ia .  

 

Riverland Regional Assessment Panel  

 
The River land Regional Assessment Panel (RRAP) is charged with assessment of  
development appl icat ion that are subject to publ ic not i f icat ion.  

 

During the 2022-2023 year the RRAP met on s ix occasions considering nine 
development appl icat ion reports on behalf  of  the Counci ls .  Of the nine 
development appl icat ion reports,  seven appl icat ions were approved and two were 
refused.  

 

Counc i l  Reports  Approved  Refused Deferred  Hear ings of  
Representat ions  

Berr i  
Barmera  

2 1 1  1 

Loxton 
Waiker ie  

4 4   2 

Renmark 
Paringa 

3 2 1  2 

Total:  9 7 2  5 
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The RRAP membership for 2022-2023 compr ised as fo l lows;  

Independent members :  Geoff  Parsons (Presiding Member) ,  Michael Doherty,  
Jul ie Lewis,  and Stephen Smith.   

Elected Member representat ives :  Cr Trevor Norton (July to December 2022),  Cr 
James John (appointed for the per iod January to December 2023).  

The Counci l  representat ive role is shared between the three Counci ls on a 
rotat ional basis.  
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Development  appl icat ions  

2022/23 Development  appl icat ions stat ist ics :  

Compl iance /  I l legal  development  

Counci l  inspects propert ies  at  var ious stages of development  as part  of  a 
development  appl icat ion process.  I t  a lso inspects  inc idences of i l legal  
development  where development  approval  has not been sought  or approved 
for  changes in land use and bui ld ing wo rk.  

Bui ld ing Rules Assessment  

Bui ld ing ru les assessment is  the second s tage of the development approval  
process and involves the assessment  of  bu i ld ing plans for  compl iance with the 
Bui ld ing Code of  Austral ia ,  var ious Austral ian Standards,  the South Aus tral ian 
Housing Code and other  re levant Counci l  and state requi rements.  

Bui ld ing ru les assessments involve the surveying of  plans for  compl iance wi th 
the fo l lowing mat ters:  

• Structural  adequacy

• Fire safety

• Health and amenity

• Energy eff ic iency

• Access for people wi th disabi l i t ies
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Riverland Regional Building Fire 
Safety Committee 
Loca l  co unc i l s  p la y  a n  im po r ta n t  r o l e  i n  p ro tec t i ng  th e  sa f e ty  o f  bu i l d in g  
occu p ie rs  an d  us e rs ,  i nc lud in g  r es ide n ts ,  wo rke rs  o r  c l i en ts  and  v i s i t o rs .  

Th e  ro l e  o f  t he  Bu i l d ing  F i re  Sa fe ty  Com mi t te e  ( th e  c om mi t tee )  i nc lu des ;  

• Ex amin i ng  t he  ad e quac y  o f  f i r e  sa f e t y  p rov i s i ons  i n  bu i l d ings

• I ssu ing  f i re  s a fe ty  de fe c t  n o t i ces  f o r  bu i l d in g  o wners  to  upg ra de  t o  a
reas on ab le  l eve l  o f  sa fe ty  f o r  occu pa n ts

• Neg o t ia t i n g  w i th  b u i l d ing  o wn ers  f o r  cos t  e f f ec t i ve  so lu t i ons  to  re duc e
f i re  sa f e ty  r i sks  t o  an  a cce p ta b le  l ev e l

• I ssu ing  n o t i ces  o f  bu i l d in g  work  th a t  mus t  b e  c a r r i ed  o u t  i n  o rde r  t o
ra i se  t he  bu i l d in g  f i re  sa f e ty  to  a  r eas ona b le  l ev e l

• En sur in g  a  b u i l d in g  o wner  co mp l ies  w i th  a  no t i c e  o f  b u i l d ing  works
req u i re d  by  i n i t i a t i ng  e n fo rce me n t  o r  o the r  ac t i on

• Revok i ng  o r  va ry in g  f i re  s a fe ty  no t i c e s

h t tps : / / www.s a .go v .au / to p i cs /p l an n ing -an d -p ro per t y / o wn ing - a -
p ro per t y / co unc i l - m on i to r i ng - o f - f i r e -sa fe ty - fo r -b u i l d ing s  

Dur in g  t he  p as t  t we lve  m on t hs  t he  Co m mi t tee  h ave  i nspec t ed  se ve ra l  
p re m ises  where  t h e  p ub l i c  e i th e r  work  o r  as se mb le  fo r  r ec re a t i on .  Dur in g  
thes e  i nsp ec t i o ns ,  de f i c i e nc ies  were  no te d ,  a nd  ac t i o n  t aken .  

Dur in g  the  20 22 /2 023  rep o r t i n g  pe r i od  th e  fo l l o w in g  i nspe c t i ons  were  
und er t ake n  w i th in  t he  Be r r i  Ba rm era  Cou nc i l  a re a ;  

In  ad d i t i on  to  th e  Com mi t te e ’ s  ro le  Co unc i l ’ s  Bu i l d ing  Su rveyo r  con duc ted  
fo l l o w up  i nsp ec t i ons  to  de t e rm in e  com p l ianc e  w i t h  f i re  s a fe ty  i ssu es  
l i nked  t o  de ve lo pm en t  a pp l i ca t i ons .

https://www.sa.gov.au/topics/planning-and-property/owning-a-property/council-monitoring-of-fire-safety-for-buildings
https://www.sa.gov.au/topics/planning-and-property/owning-a-property/council-monitoring-of-fire-safety-for-buildings
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEA LTH 

The Envi ronmenta l  Health sect ion of  Counci l  
cont inued       to  provide a broad range of  publ ic  
and environmental  health serv ices that  may 
af fect  the health   and wel lbe ing of  the 

community .  

Publ ic and envi ronmental  heal th  plays 
a dai ly and of ten unseen role to  
protect ,  mainta in and promote 
communi ty  wel lbeing.   

Counci l  cont inued to provide a broad 
range of publ ic  and envi ronmental  
heal th services in  2022/2023 to 
address aspects of the natura l  and 
bui l t  envi ronment that  may affect the 
heal th and wel lbeing of  the 
communi ty .  

The Envi ronmental  Health funct ions 
undertaken by the Envi ronmental  
Health Of f icer.  These funct ions are in 
accordance with the South Austral ian 
Publ ic Heal th Act 2011,  the Food Act  
2001,  and associated regulat ions.  

These funct ions include;  

• Wastewater system
assessment  and
management

• Food Safety

• Mosqui to Survei l lance and
Control

• Publ ic swimming pool
safety

• Legionel la  control

• Hai rdresser and beauty
salon inspect ions

• Unsight ly condi t ion,
hoarding and squalor

MOSQUITO CONTROL 

Mosqui to management  is 
important  to  reduce the r isk 
of  mosqui to ‐borne d iseases 
(arbovi rus) ,  such as Ross 
River  v i rus, Barmah Forest 
v i rus, Japanese Encephal i t is  
v i rus and Murray Val ley 
Encephal i t is  v i rus.  Counci l  
moni tors  the presence and 
types of mosqui toes and 
treats  mosquito breeding 
si tes within the Counci l  area 
from September to Apri l  each 
year.   

Dur ing the 2022/2023 season 
overn ight  t raps were set 
monthly then for tnight ly  to  
col lect  adul t  mosqui toes 
wi th in the Berr i  Barmera 
Counci l  d is tr ic t .  The t rapped 
mosqui toes were sent  for  
species ident i f icat ion and 
vi ral  screening .  
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FOOD SAFETY  

There are over 250 
permanent ,  temporary , and 
mobi le food businesses 
registered in  the Berr i  
Barmera Counci l  area.    

Free on-l ine food safety 
tra in ing is  made avai lab le on  
Counci l ’s  websi te  and is  
aimed at  educat ing food 
handlers  wi th in food 
businesses and 
communi ty /chari ty groups. 
Envi ronmental  Heal th 
Austra l ia ’s I ’m Aler t  t raining 
cont inues to be made 
avai lable.  

PUBLIC SWIMMING POOL 
OPERATION AND 
MANAGEMENT  

Publ ic swimming pools,  spa 
pools and water play parks 
wi th in the Counci l  are 
moni tored for  compl iance wi th 
the South Austral ian Publ ic  
Health (General)  Regulat ions 
2013.  There are 12 swimming 
pools wi thin the Berr i  
Barmera Counci l  area that  
are monitored by Counci l  
staf f  for  publ ic compl iance.  

Inspect ions Undertaken  

Rout ine and fol low up 
food inspect ions  

58 

Food re lated complaints  4 

Rout ine swimming pool  
inspect ions  

7 

Wastewater appl icat ions  40 

High r isk manufactur ing 
water system regis tered 
and inspected  

20 

Legionel la  
invest igat ions  

0 

Unsight ly,  hoarding and 
squalor  invest igat ions  

2 

General  heal th  
complaints  

0 
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COMPLIANCE 

Community Safety Of f icers 
invest igated more than 457 customer 
requests in  2022/2023 which were 
handled e i ther through educat ion or 
enforcement .  

Counci l ’s  Communi ty Safety  
Off icers  act ively engage wi th our  
communi ty ,  providing consul tat ion, 
in formation and educat ion in  an 
ef fort  to  create a safe envi ronment  
for  residents  and vis i tors.   

Communi ty  Safety  Off icers  provide 
a range of  react ive and 
programmed services such as:  

• Road safety  and park ing

• Dog and cat management

• Corel la control

• Invest igate abandoned
vehic les

• Moni tor and enforce Counci l
By-Laws

• Fire prevent ion

• Attend to Li t ter  and Local
Nuisance complaints

DOG AND CAT MANAGEMENT 

Over the  2022/2023 
period there were 2440 
dogs and 325 cats 
registered wi thin the 
Berr i  Barmera Counci l  
area and recorded on 
the Dogs and Cats  
Onl ine database.  

Counci l  has 
responsibi l i ty  for dog 
and cat management in  
accordance with the 
Dog and Cat 
Management  Act 1995.  
The object ives of  the 
Act are to encourage 
responsible dog and cat 
ownership, to reduce 

publ ic  and 
envi ronmental  nuisance 
caused by dogs and 
cats,  and to promote 
the ef fect ive 
management of  dogs 
and cats .   

Throughout  the  
2022/2023 per iod,  
Communi ty  Safety  
Off icers  at tended to the 
fo l lowing dog related  
complaints .   

Communi ty  Safety  
Off icers  issued a tota l  
of  102 expiat ion not ices 
for  dog related 

of fences.  

Communi ty  Safety  
Off icers  have been 
educat ing cat 
owners regarding 
their  responsibi l i t ies 
and have found that  
th is  has so far  been 
successful .  

Throughout  the 
2022/2023 per iod,  
Communi ty  Safety  
Off icers  at tended to 
the fo l lowing cat 
related complaints ;  

Cat trap hires
14

Cat nuisance 
complaints

46
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PARKING CONTROL 

In  2022/2023, 32 
park ing expiat ion 
not ices were issued as 
a resul t  o f  breaches to 
the Austra l ian Road 
Rules.   

Counci l ’s  Communi ty 
Safety  Of f icers focus on 
maintaining a safe 
envi ronment  for motorists,  
pedestr ians and cyc l is ts  by 
moni tor ing and enforc ing 
the Austra l ian Road Rules. 

The Community  Safety  
Off icers  approach is to 
prov ide educat ion to 
motor is ts where 
possib le as wel l  as 
issuing warnings and 
expiat ions .

FIRE PREVENTION CONTROL 
Cou nc i l  has  t he  
resp ons i b i l i t y  to  
ensu re  t ha t  l a nd  
und er  i t s  c a re  an d  
con t ro l  i s  m a in ta i n ed  
to  f i re  p rev en t i on  
s tan dards .  O ur  
In f ras t ruc t u re  
Dep ar t me n t  wo rk  
t i re less l y  to  kee p  
Cou nc i l  asse t s  
p re pared  du r i ng  t h e  
f i re  da ng er  s eas on .  

Cou nc i l s  F i r e  
Preve n t i on  O f f i ce r  
com me nc ed  f i r e  
p rev en t i o n  d u t i es  i n  
Se p te m ber  20 22  
send i ng  69  
educ a t i o n -b ase d  
l e t te rs  t o  th ose  
o wn ers  who  
p rev i ous l y  r ece i v e d  
no t i ces ,  re m in d ing  
the m th a t  i t  i s  t ime  
to  p rep are  f o r  t he  
f i re  da ng er  s eas on .  

Insp ec t i ons  o f  
eve ry  p rop er t y  
w i th i n  th e  Co unc i l  

a re a  we re  
cond uc t ed  
th ro ug hou t  Oc t ob e r  
202 2 .  As  a  res u l t ,  
120  p rope r t i es  were  
i den t i f i e d  as  
req u i r i ng  work  an d  
i ssued  Sec t i o n  
105 F  f i r e  ha za rd  
red uc t i on  no t i c es  t o  
red uce  t he  r i s k  o f  
f i re  on  the i r  l an d  
w i th i n  a  t i me f ra me.  
Su bse qu en t  
i nspec t i ons  on  t he  
120  p rope r t i es  were  
ca r r i e d  o u t  i n  
Nove mb er  20 22 .  

Ou t  o f  t he  12 0  
Se c t i on  10 5F  
no t i ces  i ss ue d ,  2 3  
l and o wn ers  were  
i den t i f i e d  as  no n -
com p l ian t ,  an d  
exp ia t i ons  were  
i ssued .    

Com m un i t y  Sa f e ty  
O f f i ce rs  w i l l  
con t i n ue  t o  m on i t o r  
a l l  l and  w i t h in  th e  
Cou nc i l  a re a  a nd  

i ssue  c le an  up  
no t i ces  wh ere  
req u i re d  th rou gh ou t  
the  f i re  da ng er  
seas on .   

To ugh er  
res t r i c t i o ns  o n  th e  
i ssu ing  o f  Sch ed u le  
9  an d  1 0  p e rm i t s ,  
i ssued  du r ing  t he  
f i re  da ng er  s eas on  
were  i n t ro duc ed  
seve ra l  ye a rs  ag o .   

I n  to t a l ,  Cou nc i l  
i s sued  s i x  pe rm i t s  
und er  t he  F i re  an d  
Emerge ncy  
Se rv i ces  Ac t  to  
l i gh t  an d  ma in t a in
f i res  d u r in g  f i re
dan ge r  se aso n ,
ma in l y  t o  th ose
ope ra t i n g  b us in ess
fo r  th e  p u rp ose  o f
su lph u r  b ox  bu rn in g
and  cha rco a l
p ro duc t i o n  a n d
em erg enc y  ho t
works

Section 105F Statistics 2022/2023 

Section 105F notices issued 120 

Council action required 0 

Expiations issued 23 
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COUNCIL PROJECTS 

Envi ronmental  Management and 
Sustainabi l i ty  Strategy act iv i t ies  

• Guided nature Walk  – Berr i
Barmera Landcare undertook
guided nature walk around
Mart in Bend to educate the
communi ty ,  the walks were
at tended by approximately 100
people .

• Xeriscaping Workshops -
Xeriscaping is  the process of
landscaping or gardening that
reduced or  el iminates the need
for  i r r igat ion.  Workshops were
held in Barmera and Berr i  wi th
46 community members
at tending.

• Heal ing Place – was developed
on an unloved smal l  t r iangular
patch of  ground in Barmera,
located on the corners of
Hawdon Street ,  Eyre Street and
Eyre Lane. The Heal ing Place
is now a place of peace and
tranqui l i ty  for the community to
si t  and relax in this now
invi t ing community space .

• River land Fie ld Day
Partnership – Berr i  Barmera
Counci l  par tnered with Berr i
Barmera Landcare to promote
recycl ing “what  goes in  what

bin”,  nat ive t ree giveaway, 
compost ing and general  
in formation .  

• Plast ic Free July  Act iv i t ies  –
Plast ic Free act iv i t ies
included the communi ty  and
school  recycl ing chal lenge
and recycl ing market .

• Be Bushf i re  Ready – Counci l
partnered wi th both the
Monash and Barmera CFS at
the October Markets to
inform and promote the
concept,  f i rst -hand advice
and d is t r ibute in formation
ki ts  and give aways to the
communi ty .

• Dog Desexing Subsidy –
Counci l  par tnered with the
River land Veter inary Cl in ic
(Berr i )  to of fer  a subsidised
dog desexing and
microchipping program for
Berr i  Barmera Counci l
res idents.  This program aids
wi th the costs  and the
compl iance of mandatory
desexing and microchipping
laws in  South Austral ia .  85
appl icat ions for  dog desexing
were received with 54
appl icat ions pursuing the
desexing procedure.

Healing Place 
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+
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GROWTH AND ACTIVATION 

The Growth and Act ivat ion Port fo l io is  
a new team establ ished to develop 
and del iver  pro jects ,  events and 
services that  engage the community 
in  improving the l iveabi l i ty  and 
economy of  Berr i  Barmera Counci l  
area.  The team works to del iver 
st rategic  outcomes and enhance a 
posi t ive image of  our region as a 
tourism dest inat ion and enhance the 
l i festy le  for v is i tors  and residents .

The por t fo l io includes l ibrar ies,  v is i tor  
in formation services,  events ,  sport  
and recrea t ion, communi ty 
development  and economic 
development .  Counci l ’s  recent ly  
endorsed Growth Strategy leads the 
st rategic  investment decis ion making 
and the team work to support  
investment opportuni t ies in  hous ing,  
commerc ial  and retai l  development  to  

grow the region’s economy. 

Programs including communi ty  
grants,  c iv ic  events  and school  
hol iday programs,  remain an import  
role for the Growth and Act ivat ion 
Team. Over the 2022/23 f inanc ia l  
year  the key achievements of  the 
port fol io  include:    

Barmera Jetty Redevelopment  

• Complet ing phase one and two
communi ty  engagement and
consul tat ion.

• Three concept designs were
developed,  and a preferred opt ion
selected by the communi ty .

• Detai led Design budget  endorsed
for  2023/24 f inancia l  year ,
including bus iness case and cost
benef i t  analysis .
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YOUR BERRI BARMERA 

• Establ ishing Your Berr i  Barmera engagement plat form

• Active ly  communicate,  involve and col laborate with the community on Counci l ’s
st rategic  di rect ion for current and future projects ,  budgets ,  events  and
programs

LIBRARY SERVICES AND COMMUNITY 
SPACE 

• In  pr inciple endorsement of  the Berr i
L ibrary  relocat ion to 29 Riverview
Drive, Berr i .

• Developed a charter for  new Library
Services and Communi ty  Space
Advisory  Group.

• The Library Services and Community
Space Advisory Group to examine
and guide the requi rements for
communi ty  l ibrary serv ices and
future planning of a  community  and
civ ic  hub.

• Berr i  L ibrary  s taf f  supported the
Berr i  Regional  Secondary Col lege by
clearing up borrower and col lect ion
records pr ior  to  these being
successful ly t ransferred from the
‘One Card’  system to the schools
standalone l ibrary  management
system ‘Access i t ’  in  January. L ibrary
staff  have used ‘Accessi t ’  to borrow
items to school staf f  and s tudents
and,  as a consequence,  there has
been a drop in  c i rcu lat ion s tat is t ics
for  the Berr i  L ibrary  in the last 6
months.

• Library  s taf f  at  Berr i  f inal ised
considerable co l lec t ion and
shelv ing changes to create a
new study space for  Berr i
Regional  Secondary Col lege
l ibrary at the request  of  the
school  in  January.  This
change created a dedicated
f ic t ion area for  the school  in
the prev ious s tudy area to
support  the Reading for
Engagement program run in
Years 7-9.
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SPORTING, RECREATION AND 
PLAYSPACES BLUEPRINT 

• Engaged lead consul tant ,  One
Eighty SLS to prepare an
overarching st rategic bluepri n t  to
ident i fy  the opt imal use,  layout,
and pr ior i t ies for the
consol idated planning of sport ing
and p lay in frast ructure.  The
Bluepr int  wi l l  provide d irect ion
and clar i ty  of  the pr ior i t ies,

enabl ing Counci l  to be proact ive 
and responsive to the needs of 
the communi ty .  

• Commencing s tage one
engagement  wi th sport ing and
recreat ion c lubs and the wider
communi ty  to  understand use of
sports  prec incts ,  publ ic  open
space and playspaces.

RIVER MURRAY COMMUNITY 
RECOVERY COMMITTEE 

Attendance at the  River Murray 
Communi ty  Recovery Group  
meetings,  led by Alex 
Zimmermann and the Department  
of  Premier  and Cabinet .  The 
committee br ings government,  
communi ty  agencies and industry  
representat ives together  to  
coord inate recovery response and 
address issues impact ing 

response effor ts .  Counci l  s taf f  
were kept  informed of  recovery 
act iv i t ies including waste 
recovery, publ ic  access to local  
roads and campsites,  recovery 
and support  funding programs,  
reconnect ion of u t i l i ty  services, 
publ ic  heal th  mat ters and mental  
heal th support  serv ices.
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DESTINATION RIVERLAND 
OPERATIONS GROUP 

Counci l  supports a regional  
approach to dest inat ion 
development  through work ing 
wi th Dest inat ion Riverland to 
support  regional  market ing, 
industry development  and to 
engage mat ters impact ing v is i tor 
services and opportuni t ies such 
as regional  events .  A focus for  
2022-23 was f lood response and 
recovery through work ing wi th 

the South Austral ian Tour ism 
Commission (SATC)  and tourism 
businesses to assess and 
prov ide advice on the ongoing 
impact of  the f lood.  The ‘Rise up 
for  the River’  campaign funded 
by SATC remains a cr i t ical  
support  act iv i ty to the recovery 
of  the tourism Industry in the 
River land,  Murraylands and 
Lower Lakes .

BERRI COMMUNITY PAVILION 

Counci l  conducted a request  for  
names for the Pavi l ion a lso 
known as Al  f resco’s.  Over 80 
submiss ions received wi th 
Counci l  short  l is t ing ‘Berr i  

Communi ty  Pavi l ion ’  as the name 
communicated the locat ion, the 
use and the type of communi ty  
bui ld ing.  

ADVOCACY TO STRENGTHEN 
COMMUNITY INFASTRUCTURE AND 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

• Berr i  Regional  Secondary
Col lege – Student  Volunteer
Program support  conservat ion
and land management .

• SWOOP Holdings L imi ted’s b id
to the Regional  Connect iv i ty
Program (Austral ian
Government) to ass ist  wi th  the
construct ion of f ixed wi reless
towers in  the Riverland to
improve the wi reless
communicat ions network.

• Support  for  local  government
col laborat ive research grant
appl icat ion aimed at

developing guidel ines for  
counci ls  to  plan the safe,  
ef fect ive, and susta inable use 
and management  of  synthet ic 
playing surfaces.  

• Support  for  UNISA in an
appl icat ion to the Loca l
Government Research &
Development  Scheme to
undertake research on s taf f
retent ion in local  government
through recogni t ion and
rewarding service.
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COMMUNITY GRANTS 

Counci l supports a var iety of programs, services and faci l i t ies to improve the 
heal th and wel lbeing of our c i t izens and to increase the vi ta l i ty wi thin our 
communi ty .   

Wi th much of th is support is in -k ind, Counci l a lso provides f inancial support 
through the Communi ty Grants Program. The al locat ion of funds for the Program is 
determined through annual budget approval process and two round of appl icat ions 
per year, wi th an approval process through the Community Grants and Awards 
Committee.  In 2022/2023, Co unci l provided over $56,000 to communi ty groups to 
support local in i t ia t ives dur ing the year that inc luded:  

Barmera Central  Chr is tmas 
Pageant  

$1,500 cash and 
up to $2,000 in-
k ind 

Barmera Central  Santa’s Cave  $1,500 and up 
to $8,960 of  in-
k ind 

Riverside Rodders  

River land Auto 
Street  Party  

$1,500 and up 
to $2,000 of  in-
k ind 

Cobdogla Tennis  Club  Canteen Upgrade  $4,000 

Barmera Theatre Ar t  
and Craf t  Gal lery  

Purchase of  
Point  of  Sale 
System 

$1,000 plus in-
k ind of $500 

Barmera Community 
Men’s  Shed 

Laser engraving 
and cutt ing 
machine 

$1,660 

Berr i  Communi ty  Men’s 
Shed 

Workshop 
equipment  

$3,000 

Berr i  Water Sk i  Club  Rebui ld  af ter  
f lood 

$4,000 

Berr i  Regional  Chi ld 
Care Centre  

Front  entry 
transformation  

$4,000 

Liv ing Wel l  L i f t  Project  $1,500 

River land Chr is tmas 
Appeal  

River land 
Chr is tmas Appeal  

$500 

River land Brass  Annual 
Operat ions  

$1,500 

Berr i  Probus Club  40 t h  Anniversary 
Celebrat ions  

$500 
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Part  o f  Things Portal  Fantasy 
Workshops  

$1,500 plus 
$200 in-k ind 

River  Rock Dance Club  2023 Rocktober 
Dance Weekend 

$1,500 

River land Rose 
Fest ival  

River land Rose 
and Garden 
Fest ival  

$3,000 plus 
$2,000 in-k ind 
support  

Riverside Rodders  Auto Street Party 
2024 

$1,500 and in-
k ind support  of  
$2,000 

SA Austral ian Working 
Sheep Dog 

2024 Barmera 
Sheep Dog Trials  

$1,500 plus 
$1000 of in k ind 
support  

A Kel ly  U13 Austra l ia 
Gi r ls Hockey 
Championships  

$100 

2022 Riverland and 
Mal lee Vocat ional  
Awards 

Sponsorship  $250 

T Verral l  SA Indigenous 
Footbal l  Event  

$100 

2022 Youth Sport  
Cul tural  
Sponsorship  

$100 

Berr i  Santa’s  Cave  Berr i  Santa’s  
Cave 

$1,500 

Berr i  Tennis Club  Tennis SA 
tournament  

$2,500 

Barmera Lions Club  Senior  Ci t izen 
Chr is tmas 

$500 

River land Youth 
Theatre  

School  Hol iday 
Program 

$2,000 

River land Youth 
Theatre  

Annual Program $5,000 

Bowls SA Senior  Supa 
Series  

$1,500 

Loveday 4x4  Loveday 4x4 
event  

$5,000 

Barmera Sheep Dog 
Trial  

2023 Sheep Dog 
Trials  

$1,500 

NAIDOC Event  NAIDOC Event  $500 

Berr i  Chris tmas Market  Berr i  Chris tmas 
Market  

$450 
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION 

Recognition of new cit izens

During 2022/2023, 14 people 
became Austral ian Ci t izens in the 
Berr i Barmera Counci l area.  
Ci t izenship ceremonies for these 
communi ty members were off ic ia ted 
by Mayor Peter Hunt at both 
Austra l ia Day and at Counci l o f f ices 
throughout the year.  Becoming an 
Austra l ian Ci t izen is a s igni f icant 
step for people and Counci l is 
pr iv i leged to be par t o f the 
ceremonies. 

Austral ia Day 
The 2023 celebrat ions were 
modi f ied this year to due to 
COVID-19 restr ic t ions.  An off ic ia l 
ceremony took place on the Berr i 
r iver f ront  wi th our award winners 
being presented with thei r 
cer t i f icates. 

Citizen of the Year  

Glenys Mat thews  

Outstanding contr ibut ion to the 
educat ion of  young people, 
communi ty  events and 
envi ronmental  advocate .  

Young Cit izen of the Year  

Kale Karpany  

Inspi r ing and advocat ing for  local  
Aborig inal  youth through sport ,  
communi ty  events and educat ion.  

Community  Event of the Year  
River land Auto Street  Party  

Communi ty  event  to  celebrate 100 
years of  the automobi le  in  Barmera 
as part  of  the towns Centenary 
Celebrat ions.   

Building a Better  Community  
Award   -   Berr i  Men ’s Shed  

Securing $150,000 to prov ide a 
haven for  the men in our  community  
to  spend days working on projects,  
repai r  i tems,  but  most  important ly,  
having the opportuni ty  to  meet and 
socia l ise.  
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BERRI VISITOR CENTRE

The Berr i  Vis i tor 
Informat ion Centre 
remains accredited 
under the Austral ian 
Tourism Accreditat ion 
and cont inues to play 
an important part  in 
the community,  
retaining the number 
one spot on Tr ip 
advisor in th ings to do 
in Berr i .   This f inancia l 
year we saw 10,983 
travelers come 
through the door 
seeking face to face 
interact ion. The impact 
of  the f lood in our 
region resulted in 61% 
of tour ists vis i t ing to 
ask quest ions 
regarding navigat ing 
through road closures 
and where to camp as 
a result  of  shutdowns 
of our natural parks 
and camping sites.  

With the cost of  l iv ing 
increasing and the r ise 
of  interest rates many 
travel lers have been 
more frugal with their  
money which saw 58% 
of vis i tors st i l l  coming 
from South Austral ia.  
Due to this reason, 
there has been an 
increase in interstate 
travel with tour ist  
being more 
comfortable explor ing 
our region as opposed 
to overseas travel due 
to budget.   Not iceably 

there has been an 
increase of t ravel lers 
seeking free act iv i t ies 
and s ights to see over 
paid exper iences, with 
10% of vis i tors coming 
to our region after 
obtain ing r ise the r iver 
Vouchers.   Overseas 
travel st i l l  remains at  
1%. 

The Centre cont inues 
to play a major par t  in 
promoting local 
business and their  
products and is the 
only vis i tor centre 
with in the River land to 
stock only River land 
products and displays 
local art ists p ieces.  
This strengthens the 
relat ionship with the 
community and 
highl ights the local 
talent the River land 
has to of fer.   

School hol iday 
act iv i t ies/  v iewed 
displays and 
workshops cater ing 
for a var iety of  ages 
and interests,  ran out 
of  the centre,  
contr ibuted to an 
increase in the 
number of  locals and 
tour ists vis i t ing the 
centre and our 
distr ict .    One of our 
main displays for the 
year held in the 

centre was the Mart in 
Bend wet land 
display.  

Sue John was 
proudly announced 
the South Austra l ian 
Vis itor Centre 
Ambassador of  the 
year.  The award 
was presented to 
her at  the VIC 
conference in May 
by Minister 
for Tour ism  & 
Mult icultural 
Affairs Zoe  Bett ison.  
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For the 2023 history month 
in  May,  the Berr i  Vis i tor  
In format ion Centre 
partnered wi th the 
River land communi ty for  an 
exhibi t ion on ‘A scrol l  
through the his tory  of  
Mart in Bend’.   Wi th the 
South Austral ian Museum 
loaning us a Rakal i  (nat ive 
r iver  rat )  and the Murray 
Pioneer wr i t ing an art ic le  
surrounding the Rakal i  and 
i ts  local  habi ta t ,  the centre 
saw a 28% increase in 
v is i tors to v iew the 
preserved water  rat  which is 
on the verge of ext inct ion. 
In  conjunct ion with the 
exhibi t ion,  the Berr i  
Barmera Landcare’s  local  
envi ronmental is t  Andrew 
Wal ladge, and Landcare 
manager Sharon Schrapel ,  
prov ided a f ree two hour 

guided nature walk 
showcasing Mart ins 
Bend’s  biodiversi ty 
and the envi ronmenta l  
benef i ts of  f loods.  

The Centre ’s  shor t  neck 
tur t le  ‘Bonney’  cont inues 
to be a hi t  wi th v is i tors ,  
whereby she helps 
educate people on the 
importance of  protect ing 
the envi ronment  and how 
to help conserve nat ive 
tur t les.   A turt le  mania 
display was held in 
conjunct ion with 
Landcare in November 
2022.    

The creat ion of 
the ‘Berr i  Town 
History and Art  
Walk Guide’  

has been a new pro ject  
to  help promote Berr i  to  
v is i tors.  

The ‘Why leave Town’ 
gi f t  card is in  another 
new project  that is  
scheduled for  re lease in  
November 2023 wi th the 
upgrade the card for 
use wi th EFTPOS and 
Square for complete 
transact ion integrat ion.  
The upgrade wi l l  
support  more local  
businesses wi thin our 
dist r ic t  to part ic ipate in 
local  spending 
campaigns br inging 
economic benef i ts.   

Origin of  Vis i tors  
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Serv ices  used a t  the  Berr i  V is i to r  In forma t ion  Cent re  

Reasons  fo r  V is i t  
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LIBRARY SERVICES 

The Berr i  Barmera Library  Service 
has had a busy year wi th thei r  
involvement  in  a varie ty  of  events ,  
both large and smal l .  Berr i  L ibrary  
planned and held three signi f icant  
events including the Berr i  Br idge 
si lver anniversary,  the Loveday 
Internment  Camp symposium and the 
Berr i  Sport ing Clubs display.  Barmera 
Library  cont inued to support  and 

connect i ts community  to  regular and 
innovat ive programs and events  over  
the year su i table for a varie ty of  ages 
and interests.  The fol lowing report  
highl ights these events  and programs 
plus the myriad of  important projects  
and community connect ions the 
l ibrar ies have cont inued to mainta in
and create this  year .

CHILDREN’S SCHOOL HOLIDAY 
ACTIVITIES 

During the year school  hol iday  programs 
were dist r ibuted to al l  fami l ies  with 
k indergarten and pr imary school age 
chi ldren in our region.  An exci t ing range 
of  events were del ivered during the 
school  hol idays periods:    

• River land Dog Obedience &
Kennel Club .

• Marianna the Mermaid and Peta
the Pirate.

• Colouring in compet i t ion run by
PIRSA.

• Lego,  bubble wands , popsic le
f lowerpots  and paint ing plaster

creat ion. 

• Craf t  act iv i t ies including, foam
fish, key chains and
kaleidoscopes,  candle molding,
scrapbooking and t i le  paint ing.

• Lanyards chal lenge , at tending
six events across the Berr i
Barmera Librar ies, Barmera
Central  and the Berr i  Vis i tor  and
Informat ion Centre.

• Take i t  Apart  Club  (d ismantl ing
and reassembl ing computers)
run by the Riverland Youth
Theatre at  the Berr i  L ibrary i n
January.

C o d e n  &  B r a y d e n  h a d  f u n  d e c o r a t i n g   M a r i a n n a  t h e  M e r m a i d  v i s i t e d  t h e  B e r r i  L i b r a r y  
r e c y c l e d  t i n s  a n d  p l a n t i n g  s u c c u l e n t s  f o r  d u r i n g  t h e  s c h o o l  h o l i d a y s  t o  r e a d  a  m e r m a i d  

t h e  B a r m e r a  L i b r a r y  s c h o o l  h o l i d a y    t h e m e d   s t o r y  a n d  h e l p  w i t h  c r a f t  s e s s i o n  

a c t i v i t i e s  i n  J u l y  2 0 2 2  
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CHILDREN’S BOOK WEEK 2022 

Both l ibrar ies held a special  baby 
rhyme t ime act iv i ty  around the Book 
Week theme Dreaming wi th Eyes 
Open.  In  Berr i  L ibrary ,  as this  a lso 
coinc ided wi th Speech Pathology 
week, a team of speech pathologis ts 
from the Berr i  Educat ion off ice 

v is i ted, read s tor ies which promoted 
speech development and answered a 
range of quest ions f rom parents .  The 
Barmera Library hosted four schools  
enabl ing 200 chi ldren to par t ic ipate in  
act iv i t ies related to the book week 
theme.

BERRI LIBRARY VOLUNTEER 

The Librar ies  Local  History 
volunteer  assisted wi th a number 
of  projects on a weekly  basis  
throughout the year.  These 
included d igi t is ing information of  
histor ic  value and work ing on the 

QR  pro ject which when completed 
wi l l  prov ide in formation v ia QR 
codes on locat ions across Berr i  
and Barmera.  

SALUTING THEIR SERVICE 
COMMEMORATIVE GRANT 

The Loveday Internment Camp 
committee and Berr i  Barmera Counci l  
were successful  in obta ining a Salut ing 
Thei r  Serv ice Commemorat ive Grant  
f rom the Department of  Veteran Af fai rs  
of  $7046.  This amount  was matched on 
a dol lar for  dol lar  basis  by Counci l .  
The funding has been a l located 
towards the development of  a  digi ta l  
in terpret ive exper ience at the Loveday 
Internment  Camp's General  
Headquarters '  s i te  at  53 Thiele Road. 
The plan includes establ ishing a car 
park  in  a designated vacant  area of  the 
s i te  and clearing the exis t ing pathway,  
to  cater for accessibi l i ty  to v is i tors .  

Four interpret ive s igns wi l l  be 
insta l led near speci f ic  ruins at 
the s i te  in  consul tat ion with  
Her i tage SA.  The p lan is also for 
a s ign to be instal led inc luding 
history about the General  
Headquarters  Si te/bui ld ing and 
signs to also be placed near the 
hospi ta l  foundat ions,  map of 
Austra l ia made by the internees, 
and near the cel ls .   These signs 
wi l l  include QR codes l inked to 
Berr i  Barmera Counci l ’s  Loveday 
Internment  Camp websi te  and an 
app which is  in  development for 
locals and tourists to access to 
learn about this her i t age- l is ted 
at t ract ion.  



63 |  P a g e

BERRI BRIDGE EVENT 

Berr i  L ibrary  s taf f  i ns t i ga t ed  an d  co o rd ina t ed  t he  Be r r i  B r i dge  s i l ve r  a nn iv e rsa ry  
even t ,  wh ic h  to ok  p lace  on  J u l y  2 7 ,  2 022 ,  exa c t l y  25  ye a rs  a f t e r  t he  b r i d g e  f i r s t  
ope ne d  to  t he  pu b l i c .  A  c e re mo ny  t oo k  p lace  on  t he  Ber r i  s i de  o f  t he  b r i d ge ,  
wh ich  was  fo l l o we d  by  m orn ing  t ea  i n  the  Le n  Ma hon ey  roo m.  The  eve n t  wa s  
succes s fu l  t h ank s  to  the  m any  pe op le  tha t  he lp ed  w i t h  t he  p re l im i na ry  p la nn in g  
and  a t  t h e  ev en t  o n  the  ac t ua l  d ay .  

INTERNMENT CAMP SYMPOSIUM 

Staf f  f rom the Berr i  L ibrary  helped organize the German WII Internees f rom Persia 
and thei r  Fate in Austral ia  symposium and exhibi t ion that took place in the Barmera 
Soldiers  Memor ial  Hal l  f rom Saturday 4 March to Monday 6 March 2023. On 
Saturday, 70 people at tended the symposium and exhibi t ion and on Sunday, 
approximately  30 vis i ted the exhibi t ion.  On Monday,  more than 70 s tudents  f rom 
Cobdogla Pr imary School and St Joseph's School in  Barmera attended an 
educat ion workshop with the symposium presenter s.  

Studen ts  a t tend ing the  exh ib i t ion  w i th  p resen te rs  A t tendees  a t  the  Sympos ium 
on  Saturday  

MC Trevo r  Scot t  w i th  Unc le  
Ba rney  who is  shown  here  
conduc t ing  the  smok ing 
ce remony  a t  t he  Ber r i  
b r idge 25 yea r  ann ive rsa ry  
event  on  27 t h  Ju ly  

A t tendees  a t  the  Ber r i  
b r idge 25 yea r  ann ive rsa ry  
event   
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CELEBRATING SOUTH AUSTRALIA’S 
HISTORY MONTH IN MAY 

Barmera Library held an exhibi t ion ent i t led “His tory of Communicat ion.” An array of 
te lephones used ove r many years, inc luding the or iginal wooden phone that was 
pivota l to the communicat ion between locat ions to f i re up the Cobdogla pump, were 
displayed. As i t was an early form of communicat ion, Drumming River land held a 
session for 24 young and older membe rs of the communi ty, which was enjoyed by 
al l . 

The Berr i Sport ing Clubs display in the Berr i Town Hal l f rom 19 -21 May took p lace 
in His tory month. Berr i L ibrary staf f wi th assistance from Berr i Our Town and 
var ious Berr i sport ing c lubs organized the event . On Fr iday 19 May, over 140 Berr i 
Regional Secondary Col lege students v is i ted the display and completed a task 
around the histor ies of di f ferent sports in Berr i . L i fe Members of var ious sport ing 
c lubs were acknowledged as par t o f the event , 5RM held a l ive broadcast where 
c lubs showcased thei r regal ia. Over the three days, approximately 400 people 
at tended 

River land Drumming 
running a sess ion at  
the Barmera L ibrary 
for  History Month  

Photos of  community  v is i tors 
to the successfu l  His tory 
Month Sport ing Display held in  
the Berr i  Town Hal l  
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OTHER EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES 

• Ch i ld re n ’ s  ac t i v i t i e s  du r i ng  t e rm
t ime :  Rhy me T im e ,  S TEM Cl ub ,
Leg o  C lu b ,  Na t i on a l  Sc ie nce
Week  an d  th e  L i v in g  A r t s
Fes t i v a l  a re  so me o f  the
exa mp le s  ru n  by  b o th  l i b ra r i es .

• Be i ng  D i g i ta l  P ro g ram:  wa lk  i n
tech  s up por t  sess i ons  i nc l ud in g
d ig i ta l  l i t e ra cy ,  s m ar t  p ho ne
ope ra t i o ns  sc am a ware nes s  a nd
ma ps .

• Plas t i c  F ree  J u l y :
works ho ps  fo r  ch i l d re n  to
mak e  a  p ro j ec t  us i ng  a
va r ie t y  o f  r ecyc le d
mat e r ia l s  t o  c re a te  recyc le d
mas t e rp ieces .  The se
en t r i e s  we re  t hen  used  fo r  a
pub l i c  d i sp lay  i n  th e  Ber r i
Com m un i t y  Pa v i l i on .

• Ba rm era  Ne t ba l l  C l ub  7 5

Ye ars  D is p lay .  

• Ba rm era  The a t re  A r t
Ga l l e ry  Work sh ops .

• Stu de n t  Ses s ion  w i th  Cra i g
Smi th ,  Ch i l d re n ’ s
I l l us t ra to r .

• Wri te rs ’  works ho ps  w i t h
K i rs t e  Van de rg ies s en .

• Our  To wn Be r r i  a r t work  and
des ig n  b roc hure
com pe t i t i o n .

• F lash bac k  F r iday  o n
Fac eb ook  –  Co unc i l  H i s to ry .

• Fos t e r  Care  I n fo rm a t ion
Se ss ions .

• Ba rm era  C i rc le  Co nnec t  –
So c ia l  co nn ec t i on  and
even ts .

• Armc ha i r  Yo ga .

Barmera Ne tba l l  c lub  75 yea rs  
d isp lay  in  the  Barmera  L ib ra ry  BRSC s tudents  wa tch  on  as  seasoned 

book  i l l us t ra tor ,  C ra ig  Smi th  c reates  a  
ch i ld  Frankens te in  fo r  Ch i ld ren ’s  Book  
Week  
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COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION 
OPPORTUNITIES  

The Centenary Project  Of f icer  and 
Library  s taf f  he lped with the 
Barmera, Glossop,  and Monash 
Centenary Finale event  held on 
Friday 16 September 2022 at  the 
Barmera Sold iers Memorial  Hal l .   
Leading up to the event ,  staf f  
helped set -up displays and 
organised the hal l  for the event  as 
wel l  as  assis t ing as requi red. There 
were more than 200 people at th is 
very  successful  event  wi th many 
posi t ive comments received f rom 
at tendees.  

In  Apri l  the Berr i  Barmera Landcare 
Xeriscaping workshop was very  
popular wi th residents  at  the 
Barmera Library who learnt how to 
manage water  and use mulch in 

the ir  gardens for  the Riverland 
cl imate.  

Barmera Circ le  Connect ,  a  new 
ini t ia t ive at Barmera L ibrary in 
September was created to connect 
people with thei r  community.  The 
group involves chat t ing over a 
cof fee,  engaging in  creat ive 
act iv i t ies,  jo ining in  wi th community 
projects and enjoy ing each other’s 
company. I t  meets  regular ly,  has 
worked on a varie ty  of  pro jects  
including Chris tmas projects  in  
conjunct ion with the “Barmera Shop 
Window display group”,  and has 
made paper f lowers used as shop 
front window displays.   

.  
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GOVERNANCE 

STATEMENT 
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DECISION MAKING STRUCTURE 

Local Government Act 1999 - Section 41

Counci l  bel ieves 
strongly in open and 
accountable local 
government  and is  
act ively work ing 
towards st ructures 
that  faci l i tate 
posi t ive communit y  
engagement ,   not  
just  in  the form of  
consul tat ion,  but  
also assis t ing in the 
formation of  plans 
and decis ion 
making.   

Reports and minutes 
contain ing 
recommendat ions 
from Committees 

are included in the 
Counci l  monthly 
meet ing Agenda for  
considerat ion and 
adopt ion by Elected 
Members .   

These,  along wi th 
Committee Agendas 
and Minutes are 
avai lable on the 

Counci l  websi te  
bbc @ bbc .s a .g ov .a u  

In addi t ion,  Counci l  
Off icers  have delegated 
authori ty to make 
cer tain decis ions under

the di rect ion of  Counci l  
whi lst  other  decis ions 
wi l l  be referred to 
Counci l .  Delegat ions 
under var ious acts of  
legis la t ion and pol ic ies 
of  Counci l  are noted 
wi th in Counci l ’s  
delegat ions regis ter

mailto:bbc@bbc.sa.gov.au
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FORMER SECTION 41 COMMITTEES 

COMMITTEE PURPOSE OF COMMITTEES 

Barmera 
Improvement 
Committee 

The funct ion of  th is  committee is to capture, 
communicate and develop ideas and in i t iat ives 
that enable community members, groups and 
Counci l  to progress, beaut i fy and advance 
Barmera.  

Berr i  Improvement 
Committee  

The funct ion of  th is  committee is to capture, 
communicate and develop ideas and in i t iat ives 
that enable community members, groups and 
Counci l  to progress, beaut i fy and advance 
Berr i .   

Cemetery Advisory 
Subcommittee  

The funct ion of  th is  committee is to plan and 
oversee the management of  cemeter ies with in 
the Berr i  Barmera distr ict .  

Fr iends of Bonney 
Theatre Working 
Group 

The funct ion of  th is  committee is to support  
Counci l  in the strategic planning and ongoing 
asset management of  Bonney Theatre complex 
inc luding Soldiers Memor ia l Hal l  an d Hawdon 
Chambers.  

Environment and 
Sustainabi l i ty 
Committee 

The funct ion of  th is  committee is to support  
the development and implementat ion of  a long 
term (ten year) Environment and Sustainabi l i ty 
Management Plan.  

Community Grants 
and Award 
Select ion 
Committee 

The funct ion of  th is  committee is to oversee, 
monitor and review Counci l ’s community Grant 
and Cit izen of the Year programs and Pol icy.  

Strategy, Assets 
and Major Projects  

The funct ion of  th is  committee is to develop, 
implement and rev iew a Strategic Plan for the 
Berr i  Barmera Counci l  d istr ict  inc luding 
undertaking extensive publ ic consultat ion .  
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CURRENT COMMITTEES 

COMMITTEE PURPOSE OF COMMITTEES 

Planning and 
Strategy 
Committee 

Overseeing the development and review of key 
Counci l  documents and projects inc luding (but 
not l imited to) Strategic Documents (statutory 
and non-statutory),  Strategies and Pol ic ies for 
the future growth, development and act ivat ion 
of  Berr i  Barmera.  

Infrastructure, 
Assets and Works 
Committee 

The consultat ion and ongoing rev iew of  overal l  
long-term asset management strategies and 
related pol ic ies in accordance with legislat ion 
and good management pract ices.  

The consultat ion and ongoing rev iew of  al l  
Counci l ’s Asset Management Plans ( including 
Road Asset Management Program, Bui ldings 
Asset Management Plan, CMWS Asset 
Management Plan and Plant & Equipment Asset 
Management Plan),  and any other Plan 
considered re levant .  

The consultat ion and ongoing rev iew of  
Counci l ’s acquisit ions made relevant to this 
Infrastructure & Assets Committee, and in 
accordance with Counci l ’s Procurement  Pol icy.  

CEO Review Panel  The funct ion of  the committee is to undertake 
the select ion process for the posit ion of  CEO of 
the Berr i  Barmera Counci l  in accordance with 
the requirements of  the Local Government Act 
1999 and at the direct ion of  Counci l .  

Other Council Committees, Panels or Working 

Groups 

COMMITTEE PURPOSE OF COMMITTEES 

Riverland Bui ld ing 
Fi re  Safety 
(Regional)  

Responsible,  under the Planning 
Development & Infrastructure Act 2016, 
for bui lding f ire safety matters . 

River land 
Regional  
Assessment Panel  

Pursuant  to Sect ion 84(1)(a)  and Schedule 
8,  Clause 13(1)(a)  o f  the Planning,  
Development and Infrastructure Act 2016, as a 
relevant authority. 
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CURRENT S E C T I O N  4 1  COMMITTEES 

COMMITTEE PURPOSE OF COMMITTEES 

Lake Bonney 
Caring For 
Country 
Advisory 
Group  

The funct ion of  the committee is to 
support  the implementat ion of  the Lake 
Bonney Car ing for Country Management 
Plan.  

Leases and 
Licences 
Advisory 
Group 

This group is responsible for the prov ision 
of  appropriate advice and 
recommendat ions on lease and l icence 
matters.  

Audit  and 
Risk 
Management  

Pursuant to Sect ion 126 (1) of  the Local 
Government Act 1999: A counci l   must 
have an audit  committee.  

The funct ion of  an audit  and r isk 
committee include, but are not l imited to – 
the rev iew of annual f inancia l statement,  
strategic management p lans or annual  
business plan, l iais ing with Counci l ’s 
auditor and rev iewing internal controls .  
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ALLOWANCES PAID 

Senior  Execut ive Of f icers – Regis ter of  Salar ies 

TITLE OF POSITION CLASSIFICATION OTHER BENEFITS 

Chief  Execut ive 
Off icer  

Contract  
Agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  Vehic le  

Mobi le Phone 

iPad 

Laptop 

Manager Corporate 
Services  

Contract  
Agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  Vehic le  

Mobi le Phone 

iPad 

Laptop 

Manager 
In f rast ructure and 
Operat ions  

Contract  
Agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  Vehic le  

Mobi le Phone 
Reimbursement  

iPad 

Laptop 

Manager 
Envi ronment and 
Regulatory 
Services  

Contract  
Agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  Vehic le  

Mobi le Phone 
Reimbursement  

iPad 

Laptop 

Manager Growth 
and Act ivat ion  

Contract  
Agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  Vehic le  

Mobi le Phone 

iPad 

Laptop 

Library  Manager  LG Award includes 
EB agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  vehic le 

Communi ty ,  
Recreat ion and 
Events  Manager  

LG Award 
includes EB 
agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  Vehic le 

Mobi le Phone 
Al lowance 

Civic Al lowance  

iPad 

Laptop 

Human 
Resources and 
Risk Manager  

LG Award 
includes EB 
agreement  

Annual Salary  

Motor  Vehic le 

Mobi le Phone 

iPad 

Laptop 
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ALLOWANCES PAID 
To E lected Members and Counci l  Committee  Members  

E lected  Members  rece ive  an  al lowance as  provided  for  under  the  Local  Government  Act  
1999 for discharging their formal duties, which is set by the Remuneration Tribunal and adjusted 
annually by formula prescribed by the regulations.  

ELECTED MEMBERS ALLOWANCES AND BENEFITS 

Mayoral  a l lowance  $61,524 

Deputy Mayoral  a l lowance $19,226 

Chai rman of standing 
committees al lowance 

$19,106 

Elected Member al lowance  $15,381 

ADDITIONAL ALLOWANCES PAYABLE 

For  those members  (excluding 
the pr incipal  member)  whose 
usual p lace of  res idence is at  
least  30km but less than 50 kms 
from the pr incipal  o f f ice.   

$454 per annum 

For those members (excluding 
the pr incipal  member)  whose 
usual  place of residence is 
located at least  50km but  less  
than 75kms f rom that  Counci l ’s  
pr incipal  o f f ice.   

$775 per annum 

For those members (excluding 
the pr incipal  member)  whose 
usual  place of residence is 
located at least  75km but less 
than 100kms f rom that  Counci l ’s  
pr incipal  of f ice.  

$1,162 per annum 
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ALLOWANCES PAID 
To E lected Members and Counci l  Committee  Members 

ADDITIONAL ALLOWANCES 

Independent  Chai r  of  the Audit  
Committee  

$1,250 per meet ing 

Independent  pres id ing 
member sit t ing fee:  

$750 

River land Regional  Assessment 
Panel  

Note:  Shared across the three 
Counci ls  

Independent  member 
( three) si t t ing fee:  

$400 

Counci l  appointment 
representat ive (one),  
appointed on a rotat ional 
basis across the Councils:  
$350 

Elector Representation Review 
Under the requi rements of  the Local  Government Act  1999, Counci ls  representat ion 
must  comply wi th a speci f ied quota tolerance.  Berr i  Barmera Counci l  is  
represented by a Mayor and 8 Counci l lors .   The Local  Government  (Elect ions)  Act  
1999 requi res that  as a 1 January of  every  e lect ion year,  t he Counci l  Voters  Rol l  is  
to  be purged of  al l  landlords,  business lessees and residents  non -ci t izens in  
readiness for the period e lect ion.  The tota l  number of  electors  in  the dis t r ict  of  
Berr i  Barmera Counci l  is  as fol lows:  

House of 
Assembly as 
prov ided by 
the State 
Electoral 
Commission 

7545 

Counci l ’s 
Supplementary 
Role 

     3 

Total  7548 

 (As at February 2023)  
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Counci l 's  representat ion quota is  therefore 8 33 electors per e lected member.  

Counci l  completed an e lector representat ion review of  i ts  s ize,  composi t ion and 
ward st ructure,  as requi red by the provis ions of  Sect ion 12 of  the Act over  the 
2016/2017 year.  The review,  which was conducted in accordance wi th the spec i f ied 
process,  publ ic consul ta t ion requi rements an d addressed the mat ters  detai led 
under Sect ions 26 and 33 of  the Act,  cu lminated in Counci l  resolv ing that:  

• the pr incipal  member of Counci l  cont inue to be a Mayor e lected by the
communi ty  at  counci l  wide e lect ions;

• the Counci l  area not be d iv ided in to wards ( i .e .  the exist ing "no wards"
st ructure   be retained);

• Counci l  cont inue to comprise of  eight (8) area counci l lors and the Mayor;  and

• The current  name of the Counci l  be retained

The next review wi l l  be conducted as per leg is lat ive requi rements, i n Apr i l  2024 to 
Apri l  2025.  

The table below out l ines a comparison for  representat ion quotas 2022/2023,  as per 
Schedule 4 of the Local  Government  Act  1999.  

Data  de r ived f rom in fo rma t ion  prov ided by  the  E lec to ra l  Commiss ion  o f  SA.  Cur ren t  as  a t  las t  
co l lec t ion  o f  e lec to r  f igure  s ta t is t ics  fo r  House o f  Assemb ly  (30  June 2023)  and  counc i l  
supp lemen ta ry  ro l l  (28  February  2023)  

Counci l  Elected 
Members 
Inc 
Mayor  

Electors   Rat io  

Alexandrina 10 22332  2233 

Barossa 12 18810  1567 

Berr i  Barmera 9 7500  833 

Copper Coast  9 899  99 

Light Regional  10 11201  1120 

Loxton Waiker ie  11 8231  748 

Murray Br idge 10 15424  1542 

Port  Pir ie  10 13015  1301 

Victor Harbor  10 13402  1340 

Watt le Range 12 8786 732 

Yorke Peninsula 12 9095  757 
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INTERSTATE TRAVEL EXPENSES

A summary of  the detai ls  ( including the cost)  of  any interstate and 
internat ional  t ravel  (excluding prescr ibed interstate t ravel )  undertaken 
by employees of  the Counci l  f rom 1 July 2022 to 30 July 2023.  

Mayor  El l a  
Winnal l  

12-16 June
2023

Nat ional  General  
Assembly o f  
LGA in  Canberra  

F l igh ts  $571  

Accomm odat ion  $845  

Conference$1,120  

CEO  12-16 June
2023

Nat ional  General  
Assembly o f  
LGA in  Canberra  

F l igh ts  $1,143  

Accomm odat ion $845  

Conference$1,120  

Cr  Ian  Schle in  12-16 June
2023

Nat ional  General  
Assembly o f  LG A 
in  Canber ra  

F l igh ts  $1,143  

Accomm odat ion $845  

Conference$1,120  

Cr  T revor  Scot t  12-16 June
2023

Nat ional  General  
Assembly o f  
LGA in  Canberra  

F l igh ts  $1,143  

Accomm odat ion $845  

Conference$1,120  
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DELEGATION REGISTER 

Local Government Act 1999 

Delegat ions of  Power to ass ist  in 
the decis ion-making process of 
Counci l ,  the Counci l  has delegated 
responsib i l i t ies and powers to the 
Chief  Execut ive Off icer and/or 
specif ic committees of  Counci l .  
These delegat ions are reviewed in 
accordance with Sect ion 44(6a) of  
the Act and are avai lable for publ ic 
inspect ion free of  charge at the 
Princ ipal Counci l  of f ice in Berr i .     

Counci ls  have a range of powers 
and funct ions to per form which are 
conferred under a number of 
di f ferent  Acts  of  Parl iament.   

Sect ion 44 of  the Local  Government  
Act 1999 a l lows a Counci l  to  
delegate many of i ts  decis ion -
making powers and funct ions under 
these Acts.  

The pr imary purpose of  delegat ing 
powers and funct ions is  to  faci l i ta te 
an eff ic ient  and effect ive 
organisat ion by al lowing decis ions 
to be made by the s taf f  who carry  
out  day to day operat ions  by 
al lowing dec is ions to be made by 
the staf f  who carry out  day to day 
operat ions.  

POLICIES 

Pol ic ies, codes of pract ice and codes of 
conduct  are fundamenta l  components  of 
Counci l ’s  good governance f ramework.  

Counci l  uses them to:  

• set  di rect ion

• guide decis ion making by the elected
Counci l  and administ rat ion;  and

• in form the publ ic  about  how Counci l
wi l l  normal ly  act

Pol ic ies and codes are reviewed, as 
requi red ei ther by legis la t ion or  the 
di rect ion of  Counci l ,  f i rs t ly by the 
Execut ive Leadership Team of  Counci l  
and then referred to Counci l  for  

considerat ion .  

Giving ef fect to pol icy  di rect ion is 

then the responsibi l i ty  of  the Chief  
Execut ive Of f icer  and 
adminis t rat ion, th is involves sett ing 
c lear and detai led procedures to be 
fo l lowed by staf f .    

In  addi t ion to mandatory registered 
and codes,  Counci l  has a number of  
pol ic ies which can be viewed on i ts  
websi te .  

Al l  po l ic ies of  Counci l  are avai lable 
for  inspect ion at the Counci l  of f ices 
during business hours.  

Copies of the pol ic ies are a lso 
avai lable f rom Counci ls websi te  or 
postal  copies may be obtained f r om 
Counci l  o f f ices f ree of  charge .  
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COUNCIL ELECTIONS 

The Local  Government  (Elect ions)  Act  1999 provides for  periodic Local  
Government e lect ions to be held in  November every four  years.  

The next local  government  elect ions wi l l  be held in  November 2026.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

Freedom of  In formation Statement  

Dur ing 2022/2023 one Freedom of   In format ion (FOI)  Appl icat ion  was received.  

Counci l ’s  Role  

The Counci l ’s  ro le is to govern and manage i ts area at  the local  level .   Sect ion 6 
of  the Local  Government Act 199, def ines the role of  Counci l  as  fo l lows:  

• To act as a representat ive,  in formed and responsible decis ion -maker in  the
interests  of  i ts  communi ty;  and

• To provide and co-ordinate var ious publ ic serv ices and faci l i t ies and to
develop i ts community  and resources in  a soc ia l ly jus t  and ecological ly
sustainable manner;  and

• To encourage and develop in i t ia t ives wi th in i ts communi ty for improving
the qual i ty of  l i fe  of  the community;  and

• To represent  the interests  of  i ts  communi ty  to  the wider community;  and

• To exercise, per form and discharge the powers,  funct ions and dut ies of
local  government under the Local  Government  Act and other Acts  in
relat ion to the area fo r  which i t  is  const i tuted.
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REGISTERS, CODES AND POLICIES

Pursuant  to  Sect ion 131 (2)  of  the Local  

Government Act  1999 the fol lowing in format ion is  provided:  

LIST OF REGISTERS 

• Sect ion 68 Members Register of  In terests

• Sect ion 79 Members Register of  Al lowances and Benef i ts

• Sect ion 105 Of f icers Register of  Salar ies

• Sect ion 116 Of f icer  Register of  Interests

• Sect ion 188 Fees and Charges

• Sect ion 207 Communi ty  Land

• Sect ion 231 Publ ic  Roads

• Sect ion 252 By Laws

CODES 

• Sect ion 63 Members Code of Conduct

• Sect ion 92 Code of  Pract ice for  Access to Meet ings and Documents

• Sect ion 110 Employees Code of Conduct

• Reg 6 Code of  Pract ice for  Meet i ng Procedures

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS 

• Access to Meet ings -  Code of  Pract ice

• CCTV Pol icy

• CEO Leave Pol icy

• Chi ldren and Vulnerable Persons’  Safety Pol icy

• Counci l  Member Access to Information

• Delegat ions

• Elect ions -  Caretaker Pol icy

• Review of  Counci l  Dec is ions ( Inc luding Handl ing Complaints)

• Procedure for  Managing Elected Members Code of Conduct (Breach of Code)
Complaints

• Elected Member Support

• Road and Street Naming Pol icy

• Informal  Gatherings Pol icy

• Order Making Pol icy

• Procurement  (Contract ing and Tendering) Pol icy  and Procedure

• Publ ic Consul tat ion and Community Engagement

• Training -  Elected Members

• Code of Conduct -  Elected Members and Commit tee Members

• Code of Conduct -  Counci l  Employees
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  

▪ Annual Budget Pol icy

• Asset  Account ing

• Asset  Management

• Business and Resident ial  Development Support  Pol icy

• Communi ty  Grants and Assis tance

• Communi ty  Group Loan

• Credit  Card Purchasing Pol icy

• Credit  Card Cardholders  Regis ter

• Debt Recovery

• Fees and Charges Pol icy  and Schedule

• Fraud and Corrupt ion Prevent ion Pol icy

• Financial  Hardship (CWMS) Pol icy

• Fines – Rates Recovery

• General  Ledger Pol icy

• Treasury Management

• Valuat ion of  Land Under Roads Pol icy

• Publ ic Interest Disc losure Pol icy  and Procedure

• Privacy Pol icy  Rates

• Fines/Rates Recovery Pol icy

• Rate Capping Rebate Pol icy

• Rate Rebate Pol icy •  Rate Remission Pol icy

• Rating Pol icy

• In ternal  F inanc ial  Controls  Pol icy

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS  

• Mobi le Temporary  Vending Pol icy

• Delegat ions Regis ter

• Gift  and Benef i ts Register

• Lease Register

• Training Regis ter –  Elected Members and Employees

ADDITIONAL CODES of  conduct have been adopted by Co unci l  and include:  

– Code of Conduct Chi ld  Safe Environments

GUIDELINES 

• Communi ty  Grant  Guidel ines

• Confl ic t  o f  Interest   Guidel ines

• Confident ial i ty  Guidel ines

• Guidel ines and General  Approval  for  the Placement  or Af f ixat ion of  Elect ion
Signs
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The fol lowing procedure has been adopted to support  the Code of Conduct  for 
Counci l  Members:  

• Complaints  Handl ing Procedure under the Code of  Conduct  for Counci l
Members
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CONTRACTED SERVICES 2022/2023

Compet i t ive Tender ing /  Cost Ef fect ive Del ivery  of  Service  

Contractors  are awarded on a tender/quotat ion basis  as Counci l ’s  commitment 
towards prov iding cost  ef fect ive services to i ts communi ty as wel l  as  compet i t ive 
tendering.  Resul t ing f rom this approach by Counci l ,  s ign i f icant  amounts of Counci ls 
operat ions are contracted out to minimize Counci l ’s  requi rements to  provide
expensive p lant  and equipment  and also to mainta in a re lat ive l y  smal l  workforce as
we cont inue to reduce overheads.   The table below out l ines the contract  work
awarded through tendering/quotat ion processes for speci f ic  projects and funct ions
of  the Counci l  in accordance wi th Counci l ’s  Procurement Pol ic ies and Procedu res.

CONTRACTORS 2022-2023 

Audit  Contract (External )  Bent leys SA $36 ,995.00

Barmera Recreat ion Centre Management  $24 ,160.00

Eff luent  Drainage Maintenance $245 ,850.00

CWMS Inf rastructure Renewal  $120 ,643.00

Garbage Col lect ion  $138 ,8140.00
Hard waste Col lect ion $29 ,743.00

Publ ic Convenience Management  $172 ,772.00

Reseals  Roads Town – Dist r ict  $103 ,144.00

Road Maintenance Seal ing and 
Real ignment $443 ,195.00

Kerbing Asset  Renewal –  Replacement  $61 ,580.00

Dump Rehabi l i ta t ion - Monash $3 ,640.00

Footpath Renewal  Construct ion and 
Seal ing $13 ,814.00

Swimming Pool  Management $123 ,163.00

Communi ty  Wastewater  Management  $2 ,381 ,151.00

Communi ty  Wastewater  Management  
Pump Stat ion Upgrade  $43 ,286.00

Stormwater Renewals and Maintenance $157 ,507.00

Pram Ramps $11 ,160.00

Storm Damage $45 ,462.00

Rock Crushing – Quarr ies $128 ,642.00

Kerbing Replacement  $11 ,780.00

Sundries 

Ir r igat ion Repai rs and Maintenance $20 ,235.00

Cemetery Improvements $17 ,225.00

Playground Maintenance $32 ,250.00

Dog and Cat Park and Pound 
Improvements $24 ,860.00

Central  Business Revi ta l isat ion $34 ,111.00
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Major  Bui ld ing and Structures Renewals $34 ,159.00

Lake Bonney Jetty Upgrade $61 ,324.00

Berr i  Stadium Ai r  Condi t ioning Upgrade $308 ,418.00

Ir r igat ion Repai rs and Maintenance $20 ,235.00

Col in  Jennings (Apex Park) Upgrade $21 ,507.00

Berr i  L ibrary  Maintenance $6 ,995.00

Lake Bonney – Barmera Track and Road 
Development  $146 ,086.00

Mosqui to Moni tor ing $15 ,970.00

Streetscape Design $25 ,492.00

Barmera Mul t i  Sport  Change Rooms $1 ,239 ,834.00

Barmera Rec Centre Resurfacing $20 ,277.00

Glassey Park Master Plan $12 ,660.00

Barmera Lake Front  $22 ,140.00

Barmera Library Maintenance $10 ,498.00

Counci l  Off ice Bui ld ing $60 ,736.00

Debt  Col lect ion Costs  $15 ,722.00

Hal ls Bui ld ing Maintenance $62 ,069.00

Street  Tree Maintenance  Riverland 
High Works  $25 ,606.00

TOTAL $7,784,236.00 
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CONFIDENTIALITY PROVISIONS

Meetings and Documents 

In accordance with Sect ion 90 (1) of the Local Government Act 1999 (the Act) al l 

Counci l and Commit tee meet ings were conducted in a p lace open to the publ ic . 

Open and t ransparent decis ion making has been supported by 

the in t roduct ion of the Informal Gather ings Pol icy . 

Counci l and Commit tee meet ings/matters cons idered in Conf idence (Sect ion 90 (2) 
and 91 (7) . 

There were a number of occasions during the f inancial year that Counci l 
considered mat ters in conf idence pursuant to Sect ion 90 of the Local Government 
Act 1999. In 2022/2023, there were twe lve Ordinary, eight Special Meet ings of 
Counci l and 28 Commit tee/Sub-Committee Meet ings.  

At the t ime Counci l resolves to consider a matter in conf idence, Counci l compl ies 
wi th i ts Access to Meet ings – Code of Pract ice. Also, Counci l speci f ies a t ime for 
the i tem to remain conf ident ia l wi th delegated power provided to the Chief 
Execut ive Of f icer to remove the conf ident ial i ty prov is ion, provided the i tem has 
sat is factor i ly been completed or the need for the i tem to remain conf iden t ia l has 
been reviewed.  

I t is a requi rement of the Local Government Act 1999 (The Act), Schedule 4, c lause 
1(ga) that Counci l include in the Annual Report , in formation in relat ion to any 
orders of the Counci l or Counci l commit tee where the publ ic have be en excluded 
from attendance in accordance with Sect ion 90(2) of the Local Government Act 
1999.  

I t is also a requi rement of the Act, for Counci l to inc lude in the Annual Report , 
in formation in re lat ion to any orders of the Counci l or Counci l Committee tha t  
documents be kept on a conf ident ial basis in accordance with Sect ion 91(7) of the 
Local Government Act 1999.  

Counci l used the provis ions of Sect ion 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999, on 
39 separate occasions during the course of Counci l and Commit tee meet ings, 
Counci l and the Commit tees met in conf idence to discuss issues in relat ion to:  
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Sect ion  90  (3 ) (a )  in fo rmat ion  the  d isc losu re  o f  wh ich  wou ld  invo lve  the  unreasonab le  d isc losure  
o f  in fo rmat ion  concern ing  the  pe rsona l  a f fa i rs  o f  any  pe rson ( l iv ing  o r  dead) ;  

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

26 July 2022 CEO Select ion and 
Performance 
Review Committee 
Draf t  Minutes from 
meeting held 18 
July  2022 

CEO Select ion and 
Performance Review 
Panel  

16 August 2022  Chief  Execut ive 
Off icer –  
Probat ionary 
Review 

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

23 August 2022  CEO Select ion and 
Performance 
Review Committee 
Draf t  minutes from 
meeting of 16 
August  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

13 December 
2022 

Aborig inal  Ancestra l  
Repatr ia t ion and 
Rest ing Place  

Special  Meet ing of 
Counci l  

21 December 
2022 

Ci t izen and 
Communi ty  Awards  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

27 June 2023  CEO Review Panel  
Committee Meet ing 
1 June 2023 
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Sect ion  90  (3 )  (b )  in fo rmat ion  the  d isc losu re  o f  wh ich  ( i )  cou ld  reasonab ly  be  expec ted to  confer  
a  commerc ia l  advantage on a  pe rson w i th  whom the counc i l  is  conduc t ing ,  o r  p ropos ing to  
conduc t ,  bus iness ,  o r  to  pre jud ice  the  commerc ia l  pos i t ion  o f  the  counc i l ;  and ( i i )  w ou ld ,  on  
ba lance,  be  cont rary  to  the  pub l ic  in te res t ;  

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

26 July 2022 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – “Growth 
Strategy and 
Glassey Park 
Master  Planning”  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

26 July 2022 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – “Proposal  
Lot  21 and Piece 
Lots  22 and 23 Old 
Sturt  Highway, 
Berr i ”  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

29 November 
2022 

CWMS and 
Stormwater 
Inspect ions  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

29 November 
2022 

Principal  Off ice – 
Accommodation  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

13 December 
2022 

Future Planning – 
Library  Services  

Special  Meet ing of 
Counci l  

21 December 
2022 

Principal  Off ice – 
Accommodation  

CEO Review Panel  
Committee  

20 Apr i l  2023 CEO Annual  
Performance 
Review 

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

24 Apr i l  2023  Conf ident ial  
Minutes Book – 
Release of  
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – 202 El l io t  
Dr ive, Barmera  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

24 Apr i l  2023  Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – Riverland 
Waste Tender 
Brie f ing  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – Regional  
Waste Tender  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
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Minutes-  
Communi ty  
Wastewater 
Management  
System 

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – Riverland 
Waste Tender 
Brie f ing  

CEO Review Panel  1 June 2023 CEO Annual  
Performance 
Review 
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Sect ion  90  (3 )  (d )  commerc ia l  in fo rmat ion  o f  a  conf ident ia l  na tu re  (no t  be ing  a  t rade secre t )  the  
d isc losu re  o f  wh ich— ( i )  cou ld  reasonab ly  be  expec ted to  p re jud ice  the  commerc ia l  pos i t ion  o f  
the  person  who supp l ied  the  in fo rmat ion ,  o r  to  confer  a  commerc ia l  advantage on a  th i rd  pa r ty ;  
and ( i i )  ( i i )  wou ld ,  on  ba lance,  be  cont rary  to  the  pub l ic  in te res t ;  

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

23 August 2022  Berr i  Riverside 
Caravan Park  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

13 December 2022  Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – “Lot 212 
and Piece Lots  22 
and 23 Old Stur t  
Highway, Berr i ”  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

28 March 2023  Lot  21 and Piece 
Lots  22 and 23 Old 
Sturt  Highway, 
Berr i  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

24 Apr i l  2023  Sale of Counci l  
Land – L:ot 21 
(Part  22,23)  Old 
Sturt  Highway, 
Berr i  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

24 Apr i l  2023  Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – Lot  21 
and Piece 22 and 
23 Old Sturt  
Highway, Berr i  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

27 June 2023  Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes -  Proposal  
Lot  21 and Piece 
Lots  22 and 23 Old 
Sturt  Highway, 
Berr i  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

27 June 2023  Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – Sale of  
Counci l  Land – Lot 
202 El l iot t  Dr ive,  
Barmera  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

27 June 2023  Sale of Counci l  
Land  -  Lot 21 (par t  
22 and 23) Old 
Sturt  Highway, 
Berr i  
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Sect ion  90  (3 )  (e )  ma t te rs  a f fec t ing  the  secur i ty  o f  the  counc i l ,  members  or  emp loyees  o f  t he  
counc i l ,  o r  counc i l  p roper ty ,  o r  the  sa fe ty  o f  any  person  

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

28 February 2023  Informat ion 
Technology 
Disaster  Recovery 
Plan 

Ordinary  Meet ing of  
Counci l  

28 February 2023  Conf ident ial  
Minute Book – 
Release of  
Conf ident ial  
Minutes – Cyber 
Securi ty  Audi t  
Report  

Sect ion  90  (3 )  (g )  ma t te rs  tha t  mus t  be  cons idered in  conf idence in  order  to  ensu re  tha t  the  
counc i l  does  not  b reach any  law,  o rder  o r  d i rec t ion  o f  a  cou r t  o r  t r ibuna l  cons t i tu ted  by  law ,  any  
duty  o f  conf idence,  o r  o ther  lega l  ob l iga t ion  o r  du ty .   

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Communi ty  
Wastewater 
Management  
System Audit  
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Sect ion  (90)  3  (h )  lega l  adv ice :  

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

29 November 
2022 

Conf ident ial  Minutes 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes – 
Future Planning – 
Library  Services  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

24 Apr i l  2023  Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes – 
Berr i  Hotel  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes – 
Trans Tasman Energy 
Group 

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes -  
Communi ty  
Wastewater 
Management  System 

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes – 
Regional  Waste 
Tender  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes – 
River land Waste 
Tender Br ief ing  

Sect ion  (90( i )  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  ac tua l  l i t iga t ion ,  o r  l i t iga t ion  tha t  the  counc i l  o r  counc i l  
commit tee  be l ieves  on  reasonab le  g rounds  w i l l  take  p lace,  invo lv ing  the  Annua l  Repor t  
2021/2022  79 counc i l  o r  any  emp loyee o f  the  counc i l .  

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute Book 
– Release of  Conf ident ial
Minutes – Trans Tasman
Energy Group
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Sect ion  (90)  (k )  tende rs  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  goods ,  the  prov is ion  o f  se rv ices  or  the  carry ing  out  o f  
works ;  

Meeting Date  Subject  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes – 
Regional  Waste 
Tender  

Ordinary  Meet ing 
of  Counci l  

23 May 2023 Conf ident ial  Minute 
Book – Release of 
Conf ident ial  Minutes – 
River land Waste 
Tender Br ief ing  

Rev iew o f  i tems d iscussed in  conf idence is  under taken on a  regu lar  bas is ,  qua r te r ly  and as  
requ i red .  Th is  p rocess  has  seen 8  i tems re leased f rom conf ident ia l ly  p rov is ions  ove r  the  course 
o f  the  yea r .  At  the  end o f  the  2022/2023  year ,  21  i t ems rema ined in  conf idence.  
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The following table contains details  of the Council/Committee meetings.

Part iculars  No of 
meet ing
s 

Total  
Resolut ions 
Passed 

Conf ident ial  
Resolut ions  

Reason for  
Conf ident ial i ty  

Counci l  
meet ings 
( including 
specia l  
meet ings)  

18 290 90 90(3)(a)  

90(3)(b)  

90(3)(d)  

90(3)(e)s  

90(3)(g)  

90(3)(h)  

90(3)( l )  

90(3)(k)  

Berr i  
Improvement 
Committee  

2 6 Ni l  Ni l  

Barmera 
Improvement 
Committee  

2 4 Ni l  Ni l  

Audi t  and 
Risk 
Management  
Committee  

3 16 Ni l  Ni l  

Cemetery 
Advisory  
Committee  

1 5 Ni l  Ni l  

Fr iends of 
Bonney 
Theatre 
Working 
Group 

2 4 Ni l  Ni l  

CEO Review 
Panel  

4  15 12 90(3)(a)  

90(3)(b)  

90(3)(d)  

Communi ty  
Grants and 
Award 
Select ion 
Committee  

1 11 Ni l  Ni l  
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Leases and 
Licences 
Advisory  
Group 

3 17 Ni l  Ni l  

P lanning and 
Strategy 
Committee  

2 12 Ni l  Ni l  

In f rast ructure,  
Assets and 
Works 
Committee  

2 9 Ni l  Ni l  

Envi ronment 
and 
Sustainabi l i ty  
Committee  

2 9 Ni l  Ni l  

St rategy,  
Asset  and 
Major  
Projects  
Committee  

2 6 Ni l  Ni l  
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THE ROLE OF THE PRINCIPAL 
MEMBER AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

The ro le of the pr incipal  member (Mayor)  and members of  Counci l  is  def ined in 
Sect ions 58 and 59 of  the Local  Government Act 1999.  

The ro le of the pr incipal  member is :  

a. to  pres ide at meet ings of the Counci l ;

b. i f  requested, to provide advice to the Chief Execut ive Of f icer between
Counci l  meet ings on the implementat ion of  a  decis ion of the Counci l ;

c . to  act  as the pr inc ipal  spokesperson of the Counci l ;

d. to  exercise other funct ions of  the Counci l  as  the Counc i l  determines;

e. to  carry out the c iv ic and ceremonia l  dut ies of  the of f ice of pr incipal
member;

1. The ro le of members of Counci l  is :

a. as a member of the governing body of  the Counci l

i .  to  part ic ipate in the del iberat ions and c iv ic act iv i t ies  of  the Counci l ;

i i .   to  keep the Counci l ’s  object ives and pol ic ies under review to ensure
that  they are appropriate and effect ive.  

i i i .  to  keep Counci l ’s  resource a l locat ion, expenditure and act iv i t ies ,  
and the eff ic iency and effect iveness of i ts  service del ivery under 
rev iew; ‘  

iv . to  ensure, as far as is  pract icable,  that the pr inciples set  out  in
Sect ion 8 are observed.

b. as a person e lected to the Counci l  -  to represent  the in terests of  resid ents
and ratepayers,  to  prov ide communi ty  leadership and guidance,  and to
faci l i ta te communicat ion between the community and the Counci l
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Public  Part icipation  

Members of the publ ic  have a number 
of  opportuni t ies to put  forward thei r  
v iews on part icu lar  issues before 
Counci l .   

These include:  

Deputations  

With the permiss ion of  the Mayor,  a  
member of  the publ ic can address the 
Counci l  or  a Committee, personal ly ,  
or on behalf  of  a group of residents .   

Presentations to Council  

With pr ior not i f icat ion and 
arrangement  wi th the Mayor,  a  
member of  the publ ic can address the 
Counci l  for a  per iod of  t ime 
determined by the Mayor on any issue 
relevant  to  Counci l .   

Petit ions  

Writ ten pet i t ions can be addressed to 
the Counci l  on any issue within the 
Counci l 's  jur isdict ion.   

Written Requests 

Members of the publ ic  can wr i te  to  
the Counci l  on any Counci l  Pol icy ,  
act iv i ty  or service.  

Elected Members  

Members of the publ ic  can contact  
the ir  Elected Members to discuss any 
issue relevant  to  Counci l .   

Community  Consultation  

The Counci l  has adopted a Publ ic 
Consul tat ion Pol icy  in  accordance 
wi th Sect ion 50 of  the Local  
Government Act  1999.  Though the Act  
speci f ies that   

Counci ls  must  have publ ic consul ta t ion 
pol ices in  place for mandatory 
consul tat ion wi th the publ ic on speci f ic  
issues, the pol icy is  a lso used for  
general  consul ta t ion wi th the publ ic on 
other  issues at the Counci ls  discret ion.

.  

This  year,  there were 11 
opportuni t ies for  community 
members to be involved in 
consul tat ions.  

In  addi t ion,  there are 
opportuni t ies for  the publ ic to 
at tend publ ic  meet ings or 
in formation forums on certa in 
issues or  to  complete a survey 
on speci f ic  issues.   

Access to Council  Doc uments  

A l is t  o f  documents avai lable for  
inspect ion or  to  copy are l is ted 
over leaf .  A comprehensive l is t ing 
of  Counci l 's  fees and charges is 
avai lable on the Counci l  websi te.  

Documents are avai lable for  
publ ic  inspect ion at  the Principal  
Off ice of Counc i l  between 
9.00am - 5.00pm Monday to 
Fr iday (excluding Publ ic  
Hol idays) .  Members of  the publ ic 
may a lso purchase copies of  
these documents by request  or 
v iew onl ine v ia Counci l ’s  
websi te .   

Agendas for al l  Counci l  and 
Committee meet ings are p laced 
on publ ic  display not less than 
three days pr ior  to  meet ings,  wi th  
minutes being made avai lable for 
perusal  wi thin f ive days of  a 
meet ing.  Agendas and Minutes 
for  Counci l  and Riverland 
Regional  Assessment  Panel 
meet ings (RRAP) are a lso 
avai lable on Counci l ’s  websi te.  
The t imeframes for  the 
avai labi l i ty  of  Counci l  agendas 
and minutes are in accordance 
wi th the Local  Government  Act 
1999 and regulat ions.  
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Amendment of Council  Records  

A member of  the publ ic  may request a 
correct ion to any in format ion relat ing 
to them that  is incomplete,  incorrect ,  
misleading and/or  out  of  date.  To gain 
access to Counci l  records a member 
of  the publ ic  must indicate in  wri t ing 
the documents required to be  
inspected,  and,  complete a Freedom 
of  Informat ion Request  form.  

Other  in formation requests Counci l  
readi ly provides in format ion requested 
by the publ ic .  Requests for any other  
in formation wi l l  be considered in 
accordance with the Freedom of 
In format ion prov is ions of the Local  
Government Act  1999.  Under th is  
legis la t ion an appl icat ion fee and a 
search fee must be forwarded wi th a 
completed request for access form as 
prov ided by Counci l  that sat is f ies  the 
requi rements of Sect ion 13 of the 
Freedom of  In formation Act 1991, 
unless the appl icant  is  granted an 
exempt ion.  Should the appl icant 
requi re copies of any documents 
inspected pursuant  to  a Freedom of  
In format ion request ,  leg is la t ive 
charges wi l l  apply  

Freedom of  In formation Request  
Forms and other reques ts 
regard ing the access to Counci l  
documents must be addressed 
to:   

Freedom of  In formation Off icer  

Berr i  Barmera Counci l   

19 Wi lson Street  (or  PO Box 229) 

BERRI SA 5343  

Response to appl icat ions wi l l  be 
wi th in the statutory th i r ty (30) 
days f rom the date of  receipt  of  
the proper ly  completed Freedom 
of  Informat ion Request  Form, 
together wi th the appl icat ion and 
appropr iate fees.   

Nat ional  Compet i t ion Pol icy 
Pursuant  to  the  Government  
Business Enterpr ises 
(Competi t ion) Act  1996 and the 
rev ised Clause 7 Statement  
publ ished in September 2002, the 
fo l lowing information is  provided: 
1.Signi f icant  Business Act iv i t ies
Category One -  Ni l  Category

Two – Ni l

Fees and Charges extract for 2022/2023 

Sale of Minutes/Agendas $5.00 

Annual Financial Statements  $10.00 

Annual Report  $10.00 

Budget Report  $20.00 

Search Fees - Standard (8 days)  As per  Act  $61.25 

Search Fees -  Rates Only As per  Act  $35.75 

Extract from Assessment Book  As per Act 20c per 
entry 
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Counci l  is  required under 
the Act to appoint a  sui tably 
qual i f ied person as i ts  
external  audi tor .  The 
external  audi tor reports to 
Counci l  on the General  
Purpose and Specia l  
Purpose Financia l  Report  
prepared annual ly .  

The external  audi tor is  also 
requi red to report  to Counci l  
on mat ters  ar is ing f rom the 
audi t  and must speci f ica l ly  
ident i fy  in the repor t  any 
i r regular i ty  in Counci l ’s  
account ing pract ices or  the 
management of  i ts  f inancial  
af fai rs .  

Dur ing 2022/2023 the 
River land G3 Al l iance 
ident i f ied that  ca l l ing for 
tenders col lec t ive ly  wi l l  
resul t  in f inancial  and 
logis t ica l  benef i ts  for 
the Counci ls  as wel l  as  
for  the successfu l  
audi t ing f i rm.   As a 
resul t  of  th is  
compet i t ive tendering 
process Counci l  
appointed Bent leys  in  
2020 as i ts external  
audi tor  for  a f ive-year 
term.  

Pursuant to the Local 
Government Act 1999 
s128, Counci l must 
disc lose the 
remunerat ion paid to 
i ts external audi tor . 
In 2022/2023,
$35,125 (ex GST)
was paid for annual 
audi t of statutory 
f inanc ia l records 
and re lated speci f ic 
purpose statements 
to Bent leys .
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REGIONAL INVOLVEMENT 

Murray lands and River land Local  
Government Associat ion (MRLGA)  

Counci l  is  a member of the 
Murray lands and River land Local  
Government Associat ion,  which is a 
regional  subsidiary establ ished 
pursuant to Sect ion 43 of  the Local  
Government Act  1999.  The 
membership of the Assoc iat ion 
includes the fol lowing Counci ls:   

• Berr i  Barmera Counci l

• Coorong Dis t r ict  Counci l

• Distr ict  Counci l  o f  Karoonda
East Murray

• Distr ict  Counci l  o f  Loxton
Waiker ie

• Mid Murray Counci l

• Rural  Ci ty  of  Murray Br idge

• Renmark Paringa Counci l ,  and

• Southern Mal lee Dist r ict  Counci l

Pursuant  to  Schedule 2 (Sect ion 28)  
of  the Local  Government Act 1999, 
the Annual Report  o f  the MRLGA is 
included wi thin this  Report  under the 
heading "Regional  Subsidiary 
Reports"  (refer contents).   

River land Local  

Government Forum (RLGF)  

 Berr i  Barmera Counci l ,  D ist r ic t    

 Counci l  of  Loxton Waikerie  and  

 Renmark Par inga Counci l  form  

 the Riverland Local  Government 

 Forum. Though the Forum is not 

 const i tu ted under the Local   

 Government Act,  the Forum  

 provides an opportuni ty for the 

River land Counci ls  to  meet and 
discuss issues af fect ing the 
region.   

In  addi t ion to the Forum, Renmark 
Paringa Counci l ,  Berr i  Barmera 
Counci l  and Dis t r ict  Counci l  of  
Loxton Waikerie  formed an al l iance 
in  Ju ly  2013,  to  be known as the 
River land G3 Al l iance (the 
Al l iance).  The purpose of the 
Al l iance is  to  increase benef i t  f rom 
economies of scale,  increase the 
range and qual i ty  of  services, and,  
improve l i festy le  to  local  residents .  
Wherever poss ible,  the aim is to 
reduce the  cost  of  serv ices to 
ratepayers through a consul tat ive 
and col laborat ive approach.  

The Al l iance meets bi -monthly and 
reports on the progress of  the 
projects to the RLGF. The Group 
moni tors  progress of the projects 
against  the agreed aims and 
object ives.   

The RLGF and Counci l  carry  out  
an annual  formal review of the 
Al l iance,  to  ensure the aims and 
benef i ts to ratepayers and 
res idents of the member counci ls 
are being achieved.   

More detai l  on the business of  the 
Al l iance can be found in i ts Annual 
Report ,  which is publ ished each 
year.  
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
TO THE MEMBERS OF BERRI BARMERA COUNCIL 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Berri Barmera Council, which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and the Certification of the Financial Statements. 

In our opinion, the financial report gives a true and fair view of the financial position of Berri Barmera 
Council as of 30 June 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Report 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial report, which gives a true and fair view 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011, and for such internal control as the committee 
and management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report that gives a 
true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Board website at http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx. This description 
forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 
BENTLEYS SA AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
 

 
 
 
DAVID PAPA 
PARTNER 
 
Dated at Adelaide this 20th day of March 2024 
 

http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROLS OF BERRI BARMERA  
COUNCIL 

 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the compliance of Berri Barmera Council (the Council) with the requirements of Section 125 
of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to the Internal Controls established by the Council to ensure 
that financial transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and 
disposal of property and incurring of liabilities for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 are in accordance 
with legislative provisions. 
 
In our opinion, with the exception of the matters described in the Basis of Opinion section, the Council has 
complied, in all material respects, with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal 
Controls, established by the Council in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, 
acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities so as to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial transactions of the Council have been conducted properly and in accordance with legislative 
provisions for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023. 
 
Basis of opinion 
 
We have been unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support the existence of controls 
relating to infrastructure, property, plant, and equipment. In addition to this, there were multiple occurrences 
of ineffective controls throughout the financial year. This indicates a material weakness in the controls 
relating to infrastructure, property, plant, and equipment. 
 
There was an absence of sufficient controls in the areas of user access, review of manual journals and 
account reconciliation for the Councils general ledger. This indicates a material weakness in the controls 
relating to financial records throughout the financial year.  
 
There were recurring failures in the procurement process throughout the financial year, in relation to the 
quotation and evaluation of suppliers. This indicates a material weakness in the controls relating to 
procurement of goods and services. 
 
Limitation on Use 
 
This report has been prepared for the members of the Council in accordance with Section 129 of the Local 
Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls specified above. We disclaim any assumption of 
responsibility for any reliance on this report to any persons or users other than the members of the Council, 
or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared. 
 



 
 

 
Limitations of Controls 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are 
suitably designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, 
or non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected.  
 
An assurance engagement on internal controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls operating 
ineffectively as it is not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests performed are on a 
sample basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of controls to future periods is subject to the 
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with them may deteriorate. 
 
Independence 
 
In conducting our engagement, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian 
professional accounting bodies. 
 
The Council’s Responsibility for the Internal Controls 
 
The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adequate system of internal controls, in 
accordance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls, to ensure 
that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and incurring 
of liabilities are in accordance with legislative provisions. 
 
Our Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council’s compliance with Section 125 of the Local 
Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls established by the Council to ensure that 
financial transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal 
of property and incurring of liabilities, based on our procedures.  Our engagement has been conducted in 
accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3000 Assurance 
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and ASAE 3150 Assurance 
Engagement on Controls, issued by the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to 
state whether, in all material respects, the Council has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government 
Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls specified above for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.  
ASAE 3000 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements of the Australian professional 
accounting bodies. 
 
Our procedures included obtaining an understanding of internal controls in relation to the receipt, 
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities, 
evaluating management’s assessment of these internal controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and implementation of controls on a sample basis on the 
assessed risks. 
 
 
BENTLEYS SA AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DAVID PAPA 
PARTNER 
 
Dated at Adelaide this 20th day of March 2024 
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MRLGA OVERVIEW 

Mission 

Being a unified local government sector working in the best interest of the region and our communities. 

Our Charter 

• Speaking with one voice

• Building partnerships

• Working with the LGA

• Planning for and with the region

• Coordinating resources and representation

• Enhancing efficiencies

Values and Behaviours 

Integrity, Leadership, Collaboration, Credibility, Unity 

Role 

Working to the MRLGA Charter, the Association motivates, advocates and represents its eight constituent 

Councils to advance cooperation, strategic partnerships and governance arrangements that oversee programs 

and projects in the region.  Through its coordination of effort, the Association leads and assists its councils 

with evidence-based approaches to high level planning, communication and representation.  The MRLGA 

works closely with Local Government Association SA, Commonwealth and State Governments, as well as 

regional partners including Regional Development Australia Murraylands and Riverland (RDA MR) and 

Murraylands & Riverland Landscape Board. 

Strategic Framework 



REGIONAL STATISTICS 

The Murraylands and Riverland's Gross Regional Product is estimated at $4.64 billion, which represents 

3.73% of the state's GSP (Gross State Product). 

In the Murraylands and Riverland region, Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing had the largest total exports by 

industry, generating $2.736 billion in 2021/22. 

NIEIR – National Institute of Industry and Economic Research 



PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

The Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association, along 
with its eight constituent councils, continued in 22/23 towards its goal 
of working collaboratively to be a unified local government sector 
working in the best interest of the region and our communities. 

As Regional Councils continue their amazing efforts across the state 
to serve local communities, it was important that in our role as listeners 
and leaders we take time to talk to our neighbouring councils about 
shared regional issues and opportunities. Through this collaboration 
we set ourselves up for greater conversations, the sharing of ideas 
and solutions, networking, co-operation, efficiencies, support and 
progress. And on behalf of the Association, I wish to thank everyone, 
including Board Members, CEO’s, Committee Members and staff for 
your ongoing collaborating as a sector. It is through collaboration we 
can achieve our goal of unity, and together we are stronger. 

 The year began with a continuing Board from 21/22. Many of whom 

    were long serving elected members and Mayor’s in Local Government 
and I’d like to acknowledge their contributions made over the years and decades of service, including Mayor 
Peter Hunt, Mayor Leon Stasinowsky, Mayor Dave Burgess, Mayor Neil Martinson, Mayor Brenton Lewis 
and Mayor Jeffrey Nickolls. Since joining the MRLGA Board I have sat with each of them at many board 
meetings to discuss pressures in regional communities and opportunities for strategic collaboration. The 
Association wishes to extend its thanks for their time, experience and collaboration, for without it, we wouldn’t 
be where we are today to continue ongoing work. 

During the first quarter of the year, the Association welcomed a new CEO, Carron McLeod. Her story, not too 
dissimilar to some, of growing up in region (Berri, SA) and after pursuing career opportunities in cities and 
interstate, ultimately decided to return to South Australia, and in this case drop her feet in a regional role. Her 
background in Infrastructure, Planning, Architecture and Environmental Design at both Local and State 
Government management positions has afforded her the opportunity to develop skills sets across a range of 
strategic portfolios that support the continued progress of MRLGA. I’d like to thank Ms McLeod for her strong 
approach to collaboration and working with others, and incrementally bringing new strategic ideas to the 
table. 

The first quarter also saw key achievements across two regional Strategy’s’ including Transport, and Waste 
and Resource Recovery; 
Through ongoing collaboration via the Regional Transport and Assets Committee, our Infrastructure leaders 
oversaw the 2030 Regional Transport Plan, Regional Road Hierarchy Plan and database that prioritise roads 
for funding. It subsequently led to a collection of grant applications through the Special Local Roads Program 
and the region receiving $3.5 million in road funding. This was the largest sum received in the region to date 
and is a credit to the Infrastructure Managers and MRLGA for it’s ongoing co-ordination to build applications 
up to a scope and quality that attract this scale of funding. 

The ongoing collaboration to oversee the regional road network helps to list a pipeline of projects to 
demonstrate to State and Federal Government about regional road demands. Some councils already use the 
discipline and procedures developed through the 2030 Regional Transport Plan to pursue other funding 
opportunities to improve their road networks. This is continually encouraged and, indeed, is the prerogative 
of each of the councils. Together, there is opportunity to take information contained in regional plans and 
advocate for network improvements across the region. 

The Regional Road Hierarchy Plan provides a classification system which considers the interaction of local 
government roads with the main arterial routes managed and owned by the state and federal governments. 
The Hierarchy has now been advanced to include road construction and maintenance standards and has 
been captured in a cloud-based Geographic Information System. As the project continues to develop, a 
framework for the strategic management of our roads is beginning to unfold and will undoubtedly prove to be 
a valuable tool for future planning and advocacy. 

Another key milestone achieved was the execution of a joint Waste Services Contract between 5 participating 
regional Councils; Berri Barmera Council, Coorong District Council, District Council of Loxton Waikerie, 
Renmark Paringa Council and Rural City of Murray Bridge. LGA Procurement were engaged to run the tender 

MRLGA President 
Mayor Caroline Phillips 



and after a much anticipated process, it successfully resulted in a new regional contract. This lays the 
foundation for further advancement in waste and resource management and recovery as a region. The state 
requirement for a Regional Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy was a positive outcome for regions as it 
enabled it to develop its own targets and pathways for diversion from landfill, recycling and efficiencies 
(different to that of metro councils) whereby it could factor in regional constraints. We also saw the collective 
efforts at Local Government level influence other private and public investment in the region, and on that note 
it welcomed the announcement that Peats Soil would be receiving funding from the Australian Government 
to build a composting facility in the Riverland. 

As quarter two began to roll in, the Local Government elections were held and voting closed on 10 November 
2022. The outcome of the 2022 elections resulted in 6 new Mayors welcomed to the region and subsequently 
the MRLGA Board. We formally extend our congratulations to Mayor Ella Winnall of Berri Barmera Council, 
Mayor Trevor Norton of District Council of Loxton Waikerie, Mayor Simone Bailey of Mid Murray Council, 
Mayor Peter Hunter of Renmark Paringa Council, Mayor Wayne Thorley of Rural City of Murray Bridge and 
Mayor Ron Valentine of Southern Mallee District Council. Mayor Paul Simmons of Coorong District Council 
and I were fortunate to be voted in as returning Mayors and have been delighted to welcome new people to 
the regional conversation. 

For incoming Mayors, their onboarding was one that could only be described as expeditious. Each of whom 

upon being sworn in were swiftly catapulted into the epicenter of a State Emergency; The River Murray Flood. 
Their leadership, along with CEO’s and staff across all Councils to guide preparation, response and recovery 
in conjunction with State services was a credit to their dedication to the role, community and fortitude as they 
embarked on efforts to remove, reduce or limit the impact of flood on people, property and assets where it 
could.  Over the course of many months, MRLGA observed outstanding achievements across the region and 
sector from CEO’s, Staff, Mayor’s, Elected Members and Volunteers of all flood impacted Councils and 
surrounds. We extend our sincerest congratulations to the leadership, dedication, empathy, advocacy, time, 
courage and fortitude displayed by all in the lead up to and during the state emergency flood. Everyone 
performed their roles in a manner that was simply ‘above and beyond’, and I’m sure family, friends and 
colleagues will never forget it and are immensely proud. 

The scale of the preparedness placed an immediate impost and large draw on local government resources, 
as significant numbers of staff were deployed into emergency preparedness. A visit to all Councils was done 
during preparedness and recovery phases of the flood, connecting with teams, listening to the issues and 
seeing how the impact (of a drawn-out emergency) was being experienced by local government staff. In light 
of resources being focused on flood preparedness, MRLGA had a two pronged approach; a) to carry on 
business as usual where it could (noting many CEO’s, Directors and Managers who sit on committees were 
in full scale emergency preparedness and respect for their time and priorities was to be provided) and b) 
listen, observe and identify gaps where it may be able to offer skills, management, advocacy or support. A 
few examples of how this developed and took the form of, include: 

- Attending ZEST meetings for a bird’s eye view of the situation and listening to Agency, Department and
Council reports. Where needs and assistance requests were emerging and/or when there were
individual and shared challenges for Councils, we could be a breadth of it. That intel later led to
supporting Berri Barmera Council and its Infrastructure Department for levee construction over a two
week period in November/December and Mid Murray Council over Christmas/New Year holiday to
provide existing staff a short relief.

- It developed a strong partnership with Wellbeing SA leaders that led to a $90,000 grant coming into the
region (which has since grown into another $90,000 and $125,000 funding (with no co-contribution
required)). Wellbeing SA then followed this up with a visit in January 2023 with the MRLGA Board. Over
the course of the partnership, we saw Wellbeing SA staff who are trained, qualified and experienced in
Mental Health and Wellbeing programs liaising with Council staff delivering community services,
wellbeing or grants on ground. Insight into the operations of SA Health, Housing SA during state
emergency’s and collective identify learnings and areas for improvement.

- Linking to the Australian Psychology Society and brokering access to their Disaster Response Network
and Program, that offers free sessions and services to staff enduring emergency’s. MRLGA released
the offer to all flood impacted Councils as part of its collaboration.

- Setting up an interim Land Use Planning Committee whereby Councils Planning Department heads were
able to convene to discuss the complexity of planning issues that were arising. Upon the first committee
meeting it became apparent that the issues required all seven state agency’s to be working together in
consultation with Local Government, and that the issues were beyond the scope for Local Government
delegation. This led to MRLGA advocating for the immediate establishment of a working group to be led
by PLUS, which succeeded and the working group collaboratively developed the first release (Flood)
Code amendment.

- Liaising with the LGA Local Government Functional Support team, and similarly identifying gaps and



opportunity’s for the sector to be supported, informed or efficient. 
- Facilitated planning technical support from Onkapringa City Council and Mitcham City Council to flood

impacted Councils (until PLUS established the working group).
- Inviting the Deputy Premier to meet with the Board and enable advocacy to be highlighted for a ‘collective

review’ / ‘lessons learned’ process, as opposed to internal/separated reviews. The meeting also
highlighted the decision to review a decision for no mental health and wellbeing (post flood) funding to
be set aside in the 23/24 budget.

During these times we observed the strong organisational cultures that exist in our regional Councils. No 

doubt the healthy cultures and positive working environments that are nurtured in the ‘everyday’ played a 
major role in the Local Government sector shining for its efforts during the event. And in many cases built a 
deeper trust between community and Council. 

An acknowledgement of thanks is to also go out to the many regional and metro Councils who provided 
resources, equipment, reporting templates and other support to all flood impacted Councils. Within the region 
a special acknowledgement goes to Coorong District Council and Director of Infrastructure, Matt James and 
District Council of Karoonda East Murray Martin Borgas for staff resource and equipment during levee 
construction, we thank Mark Coulter and Anthony McKenzie for their fantastic work. 

As the region approaches its one-year milestone (to the date of the declared emergency) business as usual 
has returned for many. Recovery though, continues along side this and to varying degrees through river side 
towns. MRLGA hope to continue to support its constituent councils through the recovery journey and 
recognise the importance of collaboration and efficiency during emergency events. The more we can do to 
plan and be prepared for future emergency’s only helps staff, community’s, businesses, assets, environment 
and region to endure and recover. As such, we’ll continue to offer the MRLGA platform for collaboration and 
to support advancements in joint planning and preparation. 

Side step across into MRLGA business as usual, and one project that was placed on hold during the flood 
was the MRLGA Water Advocacy Paper. Now due for completion in late 2023. The purpose of the paper is 
to strategically acknowledge the importance of water to the region in all facets. With the Murray Darling Basin 
Plan subject to formal review in 2024-26, it took a proactive role to start building the foundations for 
collaborative agreements and shared opportunities and challenges. With the peak of the flood now passed, 
the paper has been revived and engagement with First Peoples and stakeholders to recommence. 

In closing, I sincerely wish to thank all constituent councils and MRLGA Board Members for the opportunity 
to be the MRLGA President. The work and service undertaken by our CEO for the Association is valued and 
I can see our cumulative team work, cooperation and collaboration building with each year passing. 

I also wish to thank Deputy President, Mayor Paul Simmons for not only stepping into the role, but 
representing the region through his involvement in the SA Regional Organisation of Councils. Through his 
role as Deputy, Mayor Simmons brought a calm and experienced approach to board and planning day 
sessions at MRLGA as well as SAROC and I wish to recognise the many days of contributions he has made 
in 22/23. 

As I look to the next 12-18 months, I see the benefit of MRLGA platforms. With new state and federal 
governments elected, it is important that local government demonstrate a coordinated and cohesive approach 
to preparing place based regional strategy’s and advocating for their communities. 

We also acknowledge the Mayors and Councilors who served the first of a four year term to its communities. 
There’s a lot of work that goes unseen in roles, plenty of expectation and a responsibility to carry out our 
duties in the interest of all, with impartiality. Congratulations on your achievements in the first year, and 
together we can continue growing the regional community of 73,000 onwards and upwards. 

Lastly, as change naturally occurs in the region and we endeavor to keep up with the pressure, expectations 
and an emerging modern world, it highlights the importance of collaboration. We exist beyond our own council 
boundaries and quite often we can gain more by working together at all levels of Council and all levels of 
Government. Thank you again for the work you do in all regional communities and the MRLGA looks forward 
to consolidating on its current work, as together we collaborative, identify and advance the sector where we 
can for the benefit of the region and our community’s. 

Mayor Caroline Phillips 

MRLGA President 



MRLGA Board 

Board Members (July ’22 to November ’22) 

Berri Barmera Council (BBC) Mayor Peter Hunt (President) 

Coorong District Council (CDC) Mayor Paul Simmons 

District Council of Karoonda East Murray 
(DCKEM) 

Mayor Caroline Phillips (Deputy President) 

District Council of Loxton Waikerie (DCLW) Mayor Leon Stasinowsky 

Mid Murray Council (MMC) Mayor Dave Burgess 

Renmark Paringa Council (RPC) Mayor Neil Martinson 

Rural City of Murray Bridge (RCMB) Mayor Brenton Lewis 

Southern Mallee District Council (SMDC) Mayor Jeffery Nickols 

Board Members (Nov ‘22 to June ‘23) 

Berri Barmera Council (BBC) Mayor Ella Winnall 

Coorong District Council (CDC) Mayor Paul Simmons (Deputy President) 

District Council of Karoonda East Murray 
(DCKEM) 

Mayor Caroline Phillips (President) 

District Council of Loxton Waikerie (DCLW) Mayor Trevor Norton 

Mid Murray Council (MMC) Mayor Simone Bailey 

Renmark Paringa Council (RPC) Mayor Peter Hunter 

Rural City of Murray Bridge (RCMB) Mayor Wayne Thorley 

Southern Mallee District Council (SMDC) Mayor Ron Valentine 



Deputy Delegates (Proxy Members, Nov ‘22 to June ‘23) 

Berri Barmera Council (BBC)  Cr Trevor Scott 

Coorong District Council (CDC) Cr Jeff Arthur 

District Council of Loxton Waikerie (DCLW) Cr Clive Matthews 

District Council Karoonda East Murray (DCKEM) Cr Russell Norton 

Mid Murray Council (MMC) Cr Jen Davis and Cr John Forrester 

Renmark Paringa Council (RPC) Cr Margaret Howie 

Rural City of Murray Bridge (RCMB) Cr Andrew Baltensperger 

Southern Mallee District Council (SMDC) Cr Chris Mead 

South Australian Regional Organisation of Councils (SAROC) Representatives (July ’22 to Oct ’23) 

Berri Barmera Council Mayor Peter Hunt (President) 

District Council of Karoonda East Murray Mayor Caroline Phillips (Deputy President) 

South Australian Regional Organisation of Councils (SAROC) Representatives (Oct ’22 to June ’23) 

Coorong District Council Mayor Paul Simmons (Deputy President) 

District Council of Karoonda East Murray Mayor Caroline Phillips (President) 

CEO Network 

Berri Barmera Council Dylan Strong 

Coorong District Council Bridget Mather 

District Council of Loxton Waikerie David Beaton 

District Council of Karoonda East Murray Martin Borgas 

Mid Murray Council Ben Scales 

Renmark Paringa Council Tony Siviour 

Rural City of Murray Bridge Michael Sedgman (1 July ’22 - 12 May ‘23) 

Rural City of Murray Bridge Heather Barclay (12 May ’22 - 30 June ‘23) 

Southern Mallee District Council Matthew Sherman 

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government 
Association 

Carron McLeod 

MRLGA CEO Network and Committees 

At the January 2023 Board Meeting, Committees were rationalised to 1 representative per Council, creating 

a committee of 8 people, plus MRLGA CEO and President. The membership from 20 January 2023 is 

provided below. 

Regional Transport and Asset Committee 

BBC David Pluckhahn Manager Infrastructure Services 

CDC Matt James Director Infrastructure & Assets 

DCLW Greg Perry Director of Infrastructure Services 

DCKEM Calvin Hoye General Manager, Infrastructure 

MMC David Hassett Director Infrastructure & Field Services 

RPC Stephen Whitehead (until Feb 
’23) 
Tarik Wolf (Feb – Jun ’23) 

Director Infrastructure & Environmental 
Services 

RCMB Heather Barclay (until March 
’23) 
Tim Tol (March – June ’23) 

General Manager Assets & Infrastructure 

SMDC Matthew Sherman CEO 

MRLGA Carron McLeod CEO 

MRLGA Mayor Caroline Philips Ex officio, MRLGA President 



Regional Public Health and Wellbeing Committee 

BBC Andrew Haigh Manager Community Development 

CDC Myles Somers Director Community and Corporate 
Services 

DCKEM Katrina Fromm Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

DCLW Cheryle Pedler Manager Environmental Services 

MMC Jake McVicar Director Environmental Services 

RPC Tim Pfeiffer Manager Community Development 

RCMB Kriston Manson General Manager Community Development 

SMDC Shilo Wyatt Manager Property & Development Services 

MRLGA Mayor Caroline Philips Ex officio, MRLGA President 

MRLGA Carron McLeod Chief Executive Officer 

Water Paper Working Group 

MRLGA Carron McLeod Chief Executive Officer 

MDA Region 5 Cr Peter Raison Region 5, Mid Murray Council 

MDA Region 5 Cr Andrew Kassebaum 
(Chair) 

Chair Region 5, Berri Barmera Council 

MDA Region 5 - 
Proxy 

Cr Peter Walker Member Region 5, DCLW 

MDA Region 6 Cr Melissa Rebbeck Chair Region 6, Alexandrina Council 

MDA Region 6 Bridget Mather Exec Member Region 6, CDC 

MDA Region 6 - 
Proxy 

Tracey Strugnell Coorong District Council 

Murray Darling Ass. Mark Lamb Chief Executive Officer 

MRLGA Mayor Caroline Philips Ex officio, MRLGA President 

Local Government Regional Planning Committee Representatives 

Murraylands Council Michael Sedgman Chief Executive Officer, Rural City of Murray 
Bridge 

Riverland Council David Beaton Chief Executive Officer, District Council Loxton 
Waikerie 

Zone Emergency Management (Chaired by SES) 

MRLGA Carron Mcleod CEO (Attendee) 

Murraylands Riverland Plan, Steering Committee Representatives 

D. Mutton (Chair) 

RDA MR Ben Fee CEO 

PIRSA Barb Cowey Regional Co ordinator 

Landscape Board 
MR 

Andrew Meddle CEO 

MRLGA Carron McLeod CEO 

Murraylands Council Michael Sedgman CEO, Rural City Murray Bridge 

Riverland Council David Beaton CEO, District Council Loxton Waikerie 

C.I.T Greg McCarron Community Representative 

H. Loller Community Representative 

W. Jackson Murraylands and Riverland Aboriginal 



Representative 

Sheryl Giles Murraylands and Riverland Aboriginal 
Representative 

MRLGA Board: 

The MRLGA Board met quarterly. Membership of the Board is filled by the Principal Members (Mayor) of 

each Constituent Council. Meetings of the Board were held on: 

1. Friday 26 August 2022

2. Friday 9 December 2022 (postponed due to State Emergency Floods)

3. Friday 20 January 2023

4. Thursday 20 April 2023

5. Wednesday 10 May 2023

The meetings of the Board also provided a forum for updates from: 

• LGA SA Secretariat

• Regional Development Australia, Murraylands and Riverland

• PIRSA

• Landscape Board, Murraylands and Riverland

• Wellbeing SA

• Members of Parliament

SA Regional Organisation of Councils 

The South Australian Regional Organisation of Councils (SAROC) is a Committee of the LGA that meets 
bimonthly to focus on key issues affecting country Councils. 

MRLGA representatives at SAROC in 2022/23 were President, Mayor Peter Hunt and Deputy President Mayor 
Caroline Phillips from July to November 2022. In January 2023, the SAROC Representatives voted in were 
Mayor Caroline Phillips and Mayor Paul Simmons. 

MRLGA supports SAROC by attending meetings, submitting items of business and preparing regional reports. 
The committee met on: 

• 21 July 2022

• 14 September 2022

• 28 October 2022

• 19 January 2023

• 2 March 2023

• 11 May 2023

A link to the 2022-23 SAROC Annual Business Plan (as adopted by the LGA Board of Directors, pages 43-51) 
is provided below outlining the key priorities, projects and deliverables set by the region for LGA. 

https://www.lga.sa.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0021/1147008/Public-LGA-Board-of-Directors-Agenda-19-
May-2022.pdf 

An overview of the initiatives listed in the Annual Business Plan for 22/23 include: 

• Housing supply and affordability

• Digital Connectivity

• Regional Medical workforce

• Hoarding and Squalor

• Planning Reforms

• Jetties – Asset Management

• Coastal Management

• Water Policy

• Circular Economy and regional waste management

• Cat Management

• Rating equity and mandatory rebates

https://www.lga.sa.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0021/1147008/Public-LGA-Board-of-Directors-Agenda-19-May-2022.pdf
https://www.lga.sa.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0021/1147008/Public-LGA-Board-of-Directors-Agenda-19-May-2022.pdf


CEO Network 

The MRLGA CEO Network is established as a strategic advisory group to the MRLGA Board as well as to 
assist and advise the MRLGA CEO in governance, project delivery and the development and implementation 
of the Annual Business Plan, or other plans. As the name suggests its membership is the CEOs of the eight 
constituent councils. The Charter outlines at Clause 7.11.8 that the Network will operate on an informal basis, 
and is therefore not subject to formal meeting procedures. 

The Network provided a range of support including oversight, updates, feedback, guidance and discussion 
regarding :  

• Onboarding and establishment of the new CEO

• MR (Drought Resilience) Plan

• MRLGA’s role in the Flood

• 22/23 SLRP

• Water Position Paper

• Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy (and Contracts) and future resourcing

• VIC Cross Border Commissioner update

• Using Regional Plans (by DTI) to advocate for freight routes

The MRLGA wishes to acknowledge the enormous dedication that regional CEO’s play each and every day in 

our region to: 

- Support healthy teams and cultures amongst staff and working environments at Council’s

- Guiding successful services, governance, reporting and oversight to Council operations

- Providing leadership, strategic thinking (for micro and macro applications) and professionalism to the

local government sector and more.

The role they play is instrumental in setting the tone of successful Council operations, and without them the 

MRLGA would not be as enhanced and capable as it is without them, both individually and collectively. 

The 22/23 year was significantly consumed by planning, preparation, responding and recovering to flood for 

many of them. 

Beginning in October 2022, the peak struck in January 2023 but recovery is ongoing even though business as 

usual returned early 2023. The State has described the event as one of the largest emergency’s the state has 

endured and the outstanding efforts from all flood impacted CEO’s and Staff warrant the highest recognition 

and respect. In recognition of the CEO’s from flood impacted Councils we list (from the border, south): 

- Tony Siviour, Renmark Paringa Council
- David Beaton, District Council of Loxton Waikerie
- Dylan Strong, Berri Barmera Council
- Ben Scales, Mid Murray Council,
- Michael Sedgeman and Heather Barclay, Rural City of Murray Bridge
- Bridget Mather, Coorong District Council

MRLGA also wishes to acknowledge CEO, Martin Borgas of District Council of Karoonda East Murray who 
provided operational staff and equipment to a neighbouring council for immediate levee construction during 
the event. It goes to show that no matter the size of a Council, the spirit of giving and supporting others in 
tough times exists in our regional community. 

Overall the year for regional CEO’s across the region was a success. Constantly going above and beyond to 

position Council’s to be the best they can and through their leadership, they continue to advance regional 

Councils. Now business has returned back to normal for many flood impacted Councils, MRLGA looks forward 

to engaging with the network and providing a platform for these amazing leaders to collaborate and continue 

to identify the opportunities that benefit the regional community. 



Placed Based Regional Strategies (Collaborating for efficiency and community. Delivered through Committees) 

Statutory strategy pursuant to the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 
The MRLGA Regional Public Health and Wellbeing Committee 
includes Directors, from each of the 8 constituent councils with the 
Public Health and Wellbeing portfolio. 
Key activities included: 
- Strategy was released in 2022.
- Compilation and finalising of Section 52 (Public Health Act

2011) reports for the Deputy Chief Public Health Officer for
submission by September 2022.

- An external services agreement with RDAMR to provide PH&W
Co-ordination services was placed on hold and reviewed. A
further review of the nature and scale of administration and
resource support required by MRLGA to deliver parts of the
regional strategy is underway.

- Goal 3 of the Strategy relates to Emergency Management.
MRLGA undertook the following activities in accordance with
the Strategy:

- Obtained funding for wellbeing resources during the floods.
- Participate and respond to decisions of the Murray and Mallee

Zone Emergency Management Committee
- Share resources to help ensure our community is prepared and

knows how to respond in an emergency.
- Participated in emergency management and disaster response

planning.

Statutory strategy pursuant to the Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy 
The MRLGA Regional Waste & Resource Recovery Committee 
includes Directors from each of the 8 constituent councils. 
Key activities included: 
- Establishment of a Regional Waste and Resource Recovery

Committee was established in January 2023.
- Award and contract execution of a regional wide waste services

contract.
- Establishment of a Regional Performance Working Group, with

representation from all 5 regional councils participating in the
waste services contract, and a 6 regional council is an
observatory capacity.

- Submission to the CEO Network tabling resourcing options and 
needs to support delivery of the strategy.

- Partnership building with other Councils in regards to the scope
and methods for Education Officers on waste strategy’s and
kerbside pick up changes.

Collaborative strategy enabling better funding to the region for roads. 
MRLGA Regional Transport and Assets (RTA) Committee is a 
forum that brings together the Directors of Infrastructure, Assets 
and Environment from each of the 8 constituent councils.  
Key activities of the committee included: 
- An update to the 2030 Regional Transport Plan during 22/23

which included;
- Update to the Regional Roads Action Plan
- Walker Flat Road in District Council of Karoonda East Murray

was upgraded to a regionally significant freight route.
- Co-ordinated the application process for Councils to the Special

Local Roads Program.
- Subsequent submission of four projects for SLRP funding in

May 2023.
- Enhancement of MRLGA Regional Roads GIS
- Roads Construction and Maintenance Standards Update



Following a report developed through SAROC on regional roads, 
the MRLGA participated in a working group with DIT to begin to 
discuss the findings of the report. 

Collaborative piece to facilitate early discussions ahead of stakeholder engagement for Murray 
Darling Basin Plan (2.0). 

MRLGA successfully received a grant from Building Better Regions 
Fund (BBRF) in 21/22 to support the development of a water 
position paper. Jacobs Consulting were engaged to prepare the 
paper in response to stakeholder workshops, working group 
meetings, census data and specialist knowledge on the Murray 
Darling Basin. Meetings with the Working Group were held across 
up to 2022. 
The paper intends to : 
- Acknowledge the regions dependency on water, and begin to

decipher the role Local Government can play in water advocacy
and water management,

- Identify advocacy topics to support local and regional
communities, industries, the environment, first nations and
stakeholders,

- Identify opportunities if/when all levels of government can
collaborate for the betterment of easier process’ and less
politicised environments

- Acknowledge the Murray Darling Basin Plan review will
commence soon, and how the MLRGA and its constituent
councils can prepare for the review

- Identify opportunities where Local Government can adopt best
practice water management principles as well as plan for and
respond to moments of flood and drought.

The document is accompanied by a Regional Impact Statement. 
The paper was delayed while floods occurred and is planned for 
finalisation in late 2023. 

In addition to looking within the regional sector for collaboration, efficiency, shared resources, knowledge or 

other opportunities, the Association collaborated other Regional LGA’s. 

Regional LGA’s, Chief Executive Officers 

The Regional LGA’s CEO Group is an informal meeting of Executive Officers of the Regional Local 

Government Associations. Functions of the Management Group include: 

o Provide input into SAROC Business Plan and the Agenda

o Develop a working relationship with the LGA Management team

o Advocate on behalf of the regions and regional initiatives

o Share information and provide collegiate support

o Coordinate collaborative project activity

Meetings of the Management Group were held on: 

1. Thursday, 8 July 2021

2. Monday, 6 September 2021

3. Tuesday, 8 February 2022

4. Thursday, 28 April 2022

The Association also availed itself to other opportunities occurring in the region including: 

Future Drought Fund 

In 20/21 two South Australian regions were selected to participate in a pilot year to develop Regional Drought 

Resilience Plans. The plans in SA were funded by the Australian Government’s Future Drought Fund Program: 

Regional Drought Resilience Planning Program to the approximate value of $1.18m. 



The MRLGA were invited to participate in a joint partnership with Regional Development Australia, Murraylands 

and Riverland (RDAMR) and Landscape Board, Murraylands and Riverland to develop a regional drought 

resilience plan. 

For more information on the background, process or a copy of the plan, please visit: 

• MR Plan landing page

https://www.mrplan.com.au/theplan

• The Process
https://rdamr.com.au/information/mrplan/#:~:text=The%20Murraylands%20a
nd%20Riverland%20Plan%20(MR%20Plan)%20is%20about%20supporting,
Riverland%20towards%20achieving%20this%20vision.

• Future Drought Fund, Regional Drought Resilience Program
https://www.agriculture.gov.au/agriculture-land/farm-food-
drought/drought/future-drought-fund/regional-drought-resilience-
planning#daff-page-main

The Murraylands and Riverland (MR) (Drought Resilience) Plan was finalised as draft in May 2022 and 

submitted to PIRSA and CSIRO for review. In November 2022 CSIRO released a report on its review and 

provided 19 items of feedback. The Steering Committee reviewed the feedback and comments to the CSIRO 

report were submitted back as part of next steps to the funding program. 

Operational (external) Service Agreements 

The list below outlines the Service Agreements MRLGA held in 22/23 to support operations: 

o Regional Development Australia (Murraylands and Riverland), Public Health and Wellbeing Co-

ordinator Services (in Q1 and Q2)

o Payroll and BAS services provided by EKM Accounting (22/23).

https://www.mrplan.com.au/theplan
https://rdamr.com.au/information/mrplan/#:~:text=The%20Murraylands%20and%20Riverland%20Plan%20(MR%20Plan)%20is%20about%20supporting,Riverland%20towards%20achieving%20this%20vision
https://rdamr.com.au/information/mrplan/#:~:text=The%20Murraylands%20and%20Riverland%20Plan%20(MR%20Plan)%20is%20about%20supporting,Riverland%20towards%20achieving%20this%20vision
https://rdamr.com.au/information/mrplan/#:~:text=The%20Murraylands%20and%20Riverland%20Plan%20(MR%20Plan)%20is%20about%20supporting,Riverland%20towards%20achieving%20this%20vision
https://www.agriculture.gov.au/agriculture-land/farm-food-drought/drought/future-drought-fund/regional-drought-resilience-planning#daff-page-main
https://www.agriculture.gov.au/agriculture-land/farm-food-drought/drought/future-drought-fund/regional-drought-resilience-planning#daff-page-main
https://www.agriculture.gov.au/agriculture-land/farm-food-drought/drought/future-drought-fund/regional-drought-resilience-planning#daff-page-main


2022 / 2023 Audit 

The 22/23 external audit was undertaken by Dean Newbery (ABN 30 164 612 890) 

Financial Statements prepared by Formula Accounting (ABN 50 410 043 228) 
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2023 2022
Notes $ $

INCOME
Council Subscriptions 2        215,204        199,695 
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 2        116,232          82,783 
Investment income 2          27,332            6,478 
Total Income        358,768        288,956 

EXPENSES
Employee costs 3        179,892 - 
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3          80,791        373,836 
Total Expenses        260,683        373,836 

OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)          98,085         (84,880)

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Other Comprehensive Income -                    - 
TOTAL  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME          98,085         (84,880)

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2023
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2023 2022
ASSETS Notes $ $
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4     1,057,115        897,507 
Trade & other receivables 4            2,366          30,071 

    1,059,481        927,578 
Total Current Assets     1,059,481        927,578 

Total Assets     1,059,481        927,578 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables 5          62,841          41,515 
Provisions 5          12,492 - 

Total Current Liabilities          75,333          41,515 

Total Liabilities          75,333          41,515 
NET ASSETS        984,148        886,063 

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus        984,148        886,063 
TOTAL EQUITY        984,148        886,063 

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2023
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Acc'd
Surplus

TOTAL 
EQUITY

2023 Notes $ $
Balance at end of previous reporting period          886,063          886,063 
Restated opening balance          886,063          886,063 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year            98,085            98,085 
Balance at end of period          984,148          984,148 

2022
Balance at end of previous reporting period          970,943          970,943 
Restated opening balance          970,943          970,943 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year           (84,880)           (84,880)
Balance at end of period          886,063          886,063 

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2023
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2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes $ $
Receipts:
Council Subscriptions 242,909       170,922       
Investment receipts 27,332         6,478           
Grants utilised for operating purposes 116,232       82,783         
Other revenues - 7,856 
Payments:
Employee costs (146,059)      - 
Materials, contracts & other expenses (80,806)        (400,871)      
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 6b 159,608       (132,832)      

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash held 159,608       (132,832)      

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 6 897,507       1,030,339    
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 6 1,057,115    897,507       

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2023
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Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below.  These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1      Basis of Preparation

1.1   Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis using the historical cost convention in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government (Financial Management) 
Regulations 2011.

1.2   Historical Cost Convention

Except as stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

1.3   Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Assocation’s accounting policies.  The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of these Notes.

1.4   Rounding

All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

2      The Local Government Reporting Entity

The Association is a Regional Subsidiary under Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the SA Local Government Act 1999.

The Constituent Councils are:

Berri Barmera Council
Coorong District Council
District Council Loxton Waikerie
District Council Karoonda East Murra
Mid Murray Council
Renmark Paringa Council
Rural City of Murray Bridge
Southern Mallee District Council

All funds received and expended by the Group have been included in the Financial Statements forming part of this Financial 
Report.
3      Income recognition

3.1   Revenue

The Association recognises revenue under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) or AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) when appropriate. 

In cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations, the transaction 
is accounted for under AASB 15 where income is recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied (i.e. when it 
transfers control of a product or service to a customer). Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Association 
expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer. 
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Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

In other cases, AASB 1058 applies when Association enters into transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is 
significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives. The excess of the asset 
recognised (at fair value) over any ‘related amounts’ is recognised as income immediately, except in the case where a financial 
asset has been received to enable the Association to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset that is to be 
controlled by the Association. In this case, the Association recognises the excess as a liability that is recognised over time in profit 
and loss when (or as) the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer.

4      Cash, Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Instruments
4.1   Cash, Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Association’s option with an insignificant risk of changes in 
value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

4.2   Other Financial Instruments

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is considered 
doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition, except for trade receivables from a contract with a 
customer, which are measured at the transaction price.  

5      Payables

5.1   Goods & Services
Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as liabilities when the 
goods and services are received.  Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of invoice.  No interest is payable on these 
amounts.
5.2   Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts (other than grants) received from external parties in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against 
possible damage to Association assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage reinstated, or the 
amount is refunded as the case may be.

6  GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”

• Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

• Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable.

• Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.

• Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

7  New and amended standards and interpretations

The Association applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2022. New standards and amendments relevant to the Association are listed below. The Association has not 
early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

8     Superannuation

The Association contributed the statutory 10.5% Superannuation Guarantee to the nominated superannuation fund of the 
Executive Officer.

9      Provisions

9.1   Employee Benefits
Liabilities for employee's entitlements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or settled within 12 
months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based on-costs) measured in accordance with AASB 
119. 
Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based on-costs) to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to 
the reporting date.
No accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each reporting period is less 
than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this experience is expected to recur in future reporting periods. No payment is 
made for untaken sick leave.

10      Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
At 30 June 2023, the Association is unaware of any liability, contingent or otherwise, which has not already been recorded elsewhere 
in this financial report.
11      Events after the end of the reporting period
There are no events subsequent to 30 June 2023 that need disclosure in the financial statements.

12      Economic Dependence
The Association is dependent on the Local Councils within its jurisdiction and other funding bodies for the majority of the revenue used 
to operate the business. At the date of this report, the Board believe that the Local Councils and other bodies will continue to fund the 
Association.
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2023 2022
Notes  $  $ 

COUNCIL SUBSCRIPTIONS
General Subscriptions 215,204       199,695       

215,204       199,695       
INVESTMENT  INCOME

Interest on investments:
Local Government Finance Authority 27,332         6,478           

27,332         6,478           
GRANTS, SUBSIDIES, CONTRIBUTIONS

Other grants, subsidies and contributions
Regional Capacity Buildings 40,000         42,783         
Community Wellbeing Alliance 40,000         40,000         
Building Better Regions 36,232         - 

116,232       82,783         

Sources of grants
Commonwealth government 76,232         42,783         
State government 40,000         40,000         

116,232       82,783         

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 2 - INCOME

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
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2023 2022

Notes $ $
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 150,000       - 
Employee leave expense 12,492         - 
Superannuation 1.8 15,750         - 
Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,650           - 
Total Operating Employee Costs 179,892       - 

Total Number of Employees 1 - 

 (Full time equivalent at end of reporting period)

MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration

- Auditing the financial reports 2,900           3,200           
Elected members' expenses 3,025           3,200           
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 5,925           6,400           

Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses
Accounting Services 3,726           - 
Administration Support - 7,433 
CEO Succession Planning 1,950           21,793 
Computer & Software 2,076           2,347           
Executive Officer Contract Services - 121,780 
Insurance 6,725           4,804           
Meeting Expenses 2,281           2,140           
Office Expenses 5,184           - 
Project Expenditure 50,268         202,719       
Website Maintenance 50 4,116           
Sundry 2,606           304 
Subtotal - Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses 74,866         367,436       

80,791         373,836       

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 3 - EXPENSE
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2023 2022
CASH  &  EQUIVALENT  ASSETS Notes $ $
Cash on Hand and at Bank 103,704       156,621       
Deposits at Call 953,411       740,886       

1,057,115    897,507       
TRADE  &  OTHER  RECEIVABLES
Subscriptions - General & Other 2,366           16,500         
GST Recoupment - 13,571 

2,366           30,071         

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 4 - CURRENT ASSETS
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2023 2022
$ $

TRADE  &  OTHER  PAYABLES Notes Current Non-
current Current Non-

current
Goods & Services - - 15            - 
Payments received in advance 40,000       - 40,000 - 
Accrued expenses - other 10,347       - - - 
GST Payable 12,494       - 1,500 - 

62,841       - 41,515 - 

PROVISIONS
AL Employee entitlements (including 
oncosts)

12,492       - - - 

12,492       - - - 

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 5   -   LIABILITIES
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(a) Reconciliation of Cash

2023 2022
Notes $ $

Total cash & equivalent assets 4 1,057,115   897,507     
Less: Short-term borrowings - - 
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 1,057,115   897,507     

(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from Operating Activities

Net Surplus (Deficit) 98,085        (84,880)      
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets

Net (increase) decrease in receivables 27,705        (20,917)      
Net increase (decrease) in trade & other payables 21,326        (27,035)      
Net increase (decrease) in other provisions 12,492        - 

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 159,608      (132,832)    

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 6 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to insignificant risk of 
changes of value.  Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled 
to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:
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Accounting Policies - Recognised Financial Instruments

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association

Note 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

for the year ended 30 June 2023

Terms & conditions: Short term deposits are avaliable on 24 hour call
with the LGFA and have an interest rate of 4.3% as at 30 June 2023
(2022: 1.05%)

Accounting Policy: initially recognised atfair value and subsequently
measured atamortised cost, interest is recognised when earned

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term 
Deposits

Carrying amount: approximates fair value due to the short term to
maturity.

All financial instruments are categorised as loans and receivables.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Terms & conditions: Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Receivables - Trade and other 
debtors

Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal value

Terms & conditions: Amounts due have been calcualted in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the respective programs following advice
of approvals, and do not bear interest.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in
the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Association.
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Liquidity Analysis

Due < 1 year Due > 1 year
< 5 years

Due > 5 years
Total 

Contractual 
Cash Flows

Carrying 
Values

Financial Assets $ $ $ $ $
Cash & Equivalents 1,057,115    1,057,115    1,057,115    
Receivables 2,366           2,366           2,366           

Total 1,059,481    - - 1,059,481    1,059,481    
Financial Liabilities

Payables 22,841         22,841         22,841         
Total 22,841         - - 22,841         22,841         

Due < 1 year Due > 1 year;
< 5 years

Due > 5 years
Total 

Contractual 
Cash Flows

Carrying 
Values

Financial Assets $ $ $ $ $
Cash & Equivalents 897,507       897,507       897,507       
Receivables 30,071         30,071         30,071         

Total 927,578       - - 927,578       927,578       
Financial Liabilities

Payables 1,515           1,515           1,515           
Total 1,515           - - 1,515           1,515           

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association

2022

2023

Notes to and forming part of the  Financial Statements

Note 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (con't)

for the year ended 30 June 2023
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Net Fair Value

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. 
All of Association's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, 
and hence neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Association will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities.  
In accordance with the model Treasury Management Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a 
range of maturity dates.  The Association also has available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing 
facilities that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  
The Association has a balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments.  Cash flow 
fluctuations are managed holistically in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse 
manner.

All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments.  There is no recognised market 
for the financial assets of the Association. 

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the  Financial Statements

Note 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (con't)

Risk Exposures:

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted.  The 
maximum credit risk on financial assets of the Association is the carrying amount, net of any impairment.  All 
Association investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by 
the SA Government.  Except as detailed in Note 4 in relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is 
concentrated within the Association's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to any individual debtor.

for the year ended 30 June 2023
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KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

2023 2022
$ $

CEO salary and superannuation 165,750       - 
CEO Contract - 121,780       
Member Allowance 3,025           3,200           

TOTAL 168,775       124,980       

PARTIES RELATED TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

OTHER RELATED PARTIES 2023 2022

Amounts received from Related Parties during the financial year and owed 
by Related Parties at the end of the financial year (inclusive of GST).

$ $

Berri Barmera Council 23,726         21,630         
Coorong District Council 19,923         17,559         
District Council Loxton Waikerie 27,074         24,080         
District Council Karoonda East Murra 10,343         9,444           
Mid Murray Council 26,004         22,800         
Renmark Paringa Council 22,000         19,165         
Rural City of Murray Bridge 41,320         35,420         
Southern Mallee District Council 13,343         11,632         
SLRP Surcharge 31,472         37,965         
TOTAL 215,205       199,695       

Description of Services provided to all Related Parties above:
The Association's primary purpose focuses on the wealth, wellbeing and social
cohesion of these communities via a sustainable approach of productive landscapes and natural
environment. Its focus is on the key roles of local government.

Murraylands and Riverland Local Government Association
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 8 - RELATED  PARTY  DISCLOSURES

The Key Management Personnel of the Association include the Mayors/Chairpersons of the constituent 
Councils and the CEO. The following total compensation was paid:

During the reporting period, no Key management Personnel or parties related to them had any 
transactions on more favourable than those avaliable to the public.



Thank you
To the MRLGA Board, CEO Network, Committees, Berri Barmera Council, Coorong District Council, District 
Council of Karoonda East Murray, District Council of Loxton Waikerie, Mid Murray Council, Renmark Paringa 
Council, Rural City of Murray Bridge, Southern Mallee District Council, Elected Members, Landscape Board 
MR, Regional Development Australia MR, PIRSA, SAROC, LGA, engaged consultants, ZEMC, ZEST, SAPOL, 
Wellbeing SA, SA State Government Departments, MDA, MDBA, LGFA, First Nations and our vibrant, 
passionate, hard working and connected community. Thank you for your ongoing efforts to nurture the 
Murraylands and Riverland region to a : 

Connected Region, Resilient Community, Economic Opportunity and Healthy Environment . 
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